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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong
Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —F—aF +=-H=+—HI-F/Z

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——F —E——F “ET-=F —E—nmE —B-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FET FET THT
RESULTS E¥
Revenue WA 512,900 350,880 579,380 499,375 174,741
Profit/(Loss) before kR FEHA
income tax BRI (E1E) 2,590 36,462 (14,723) (26,611) (32,991)
Income tax expense PSR (219) (1,361) (1,447) (559) (1,566)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERHEF, (BE) 2,371 35,101 (16,170) (27,170) (34,557)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &SEHSEE
Total assets BERE 193,798 391,238 358,012 274,874 196,023
Total liabilities BERE (77,428) (239,280) (165,745) (111,082) (71,966)
Total equity et @z 116,370 151,958 192,267 163,792 124,057
—E-RFFER



Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hong Kong
Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure
to present the 2015 Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group"”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The year of 2015 was challenging to all participants of jewellery
market. Uncertainties of international economies, volatility of
stock markets and gold prices were disturbing the growth of
the market. China, being the biggest consumer market of gold,
was hit by weak economic sentiments of the western countries
and also slowdown of domestic economy. Intense competition
of the jewellery retail market put weights on new market
players especially in the third- to fourth tier cities of China.
Although a recovery of gold demand was seen in the second
half year of 2015, sales improvements were mainly from gold
bars and coins which had their investment values. The full year
demand of gold jewellery still ended up with a 3% contraction
compared with 2014.

The Group believes that development of a brand of jewellery
demands long-term investment and commitment of the
management. While a slowdown of economy could be negative
for the demand of gold jewellery, perceived economic risks
brought by further tightening of interest rates of the United
States could lift gold demand and prices from risk-averse
investors on the other hand. Gold jewellery which has its charm
of being a luxury consumer good and a tool of investment can
resume growth when the sentiments improve and consumers
have a better assessment of economic outlooks.

The Group commits to forge HK Jewellery into the word-
class brand and a representative brand of China. While further
expansion of existing jewellery retail business by franchise
remains the core business strategy, the Group will also explore
opportunities through investments and business development
in the jewellery industry and other markets as appropriate to
improve long-term profitability and return to the shareholders.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE|E

APPRECIATION 08 &5t

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this HRAFEHI#KeRR2EEZTSRE @ HKHE
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and RAREEEBEEBTNEATEREEHARK
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and Hf - W EE - EBAERZIRE TELEE -
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation E#TERAKREE/ELNEE @ BASZEHL
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their = -

dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping HEY

Chairman FE

Hong Kong B

21 March 2016 T R"F¥=A=+—H

A
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$28,467,000 (2014: HK$27,019,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$174,741,000 (2014: HK$499,375,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$35,240,000 of the Group’'s revenue during
the year (2014: HK$70,153,000). The sales of enterprise
software products dropped by 43% to HK$74,203,000 (2014:
HK$129,538,000). Revenue on systems integration business
decreased by 95% to HK$13,633,000 (2014: HK$259,211,000)
while revenue on professional services business increased by
28% to HK$51,665,000 (2014: HK$40,473,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

The year of 2015 remained a challenge to the jewellery retailers
in China. Uncertainties of international economies, volatility
of the stock markets, falling gold prices and slowing down of
the domestic economy of China were disturbing the jewellery
market.

As reported by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, GDP
for full year of 2015 expanded by 6.9%, lower than the 7.3%
in 2014 and the growth rate was the weakest in 25 years.
The slowdown of the Chinese economy contributed to weaker
manufacturing and exports, though the services and goods
consumption still reported growth.

The gold market was clearly hit by worsened consumer
sentiment in the first half of 2015. In the third quarter of
2015, a marked pick up of the gold market was seen when
gold jewellery, bars and coins became more affordable to
consumers. Although improvements in sales performance
continued in the fourth quarter of 2015, the full year demand of
gold jewellery ended up with a decrease of approximately 3%
from 807.2 tonnes to 783.5 tonnes.
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ERREZERAER AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's jewellery business relied on sales performance
and investment of the retailers in China through franchise of
the Group’s brand. The slowdown of economic growth had
intensified competition in the gold jewellery industry such that
the impacts on the retailers in the third- and fourth-tier cities
in China were more apparent. In 2015, the turnover of the
jewellery segment decreased by 50% to HK$35,240,000 from
HK$70,153,000 in 2014 mainly due to the contraction of gold
jewellery demand.

The IT Products and Services segment of the Group was also
adversely affected by the slowdown of the Chinese economy.
Due to adding uncertainties of the domestic economy and the
sudden crash in the stock market in the third quarter of 2015,
major banks and finance institutions which were targeted by the
business segment had reduced their IT spending significantly.
On the other hand, competitions for skilled staff in the market
remained intense and the costs to implement solutions and
to deliver services to customers increased substantially. As a
result, the business segment reported a bigger loss for 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with bank balances and cash of HK$33,563,000
(2014 HK$86,872,000).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defined net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprised equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gearing ratio is not
presented, as the net debt was zero. (2014: zero).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s issued shares were
1,188,460,000 shares (2014: 1,188,460,000 shares).

INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no investment in the
equity securities listed in Hong Kong (2014: HK$26,945,000).
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEMNWED

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the turnover of the
Jewellery Product segment and the IT Products and Services
segments amounted to HK$35,240,000 (2014: HK$70,153,000)
and HK$139,501,000 (2014: HK$429,222,000) respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the number of employees of the
Group was 435 (2014: 574). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group’s jewellery business relied on gold jewellery demand
which was largely correlated to the expectations of gold prices
and trends. While a slowdown of economy could be negative
for the demand for gold jewellery and investments, perceived
economic risks brought by a further tightening of interest rates
of the United States or global crisis could raise gold demand
and prices from international risk-averse investors.

The Management believed that the Group's jewellery business
would be recovering in 2016. A forceful rebound in gold prices
of approximately 10% in the beginning of 2016 had induced
good demand of gold jewellery in China. Although it would be
difficult to make a prediction of gold prices in mid- to long-term,
the management believed that gold jewellery, in light of its
investment element, could regain its importance after multi-year
corrections.

Extending the brand H< H.K. JEWELRY from the Group's core
operations in Shenzhen to other first-and second-tier cities and
all major provincial capital cities in China by franchise remains
the Group's strategy for developing its sales and marketing
network. To enhance competitiveness, the group will continue
to explore opportunities along supply chain of the industry
through investments and business development as appropriate.
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ERREZERAER AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On product portfolio, while gold, platinum, karat gold jewellery
and diamond ornaments remains the main products, other
product groups such as emerald, ruby and sapphire, pearl and
other varieties will be further developed to cater the needs of
different consumers in the domestic markets.

For the IT Products and Services segment, effective cost
controls and market exploration will be the focus of the
management in the foreseeable future. The management has
started certain organizational efforts for relieving the segment’s
dependency on the high cost personnel that include outsources
of some loss-making operations. The management believes that
these efforts can help to reduce the negative impact of high
personnel cost to the Group in the longer term.

Overall, the Group will continue to vigorously promote the
development strategy of H< H.K. JEWELRY while efforts will
be made to reduce reliance on the IT Products and Services
segment. With effective internal management and adhering to
the usual good practice, the management commits to optimize
the existing business structure and aggressively seek for new
opportunities.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
There is no deviation from the relevant Code Provisions
as at 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group’s business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Appointed on 17 February 2016)
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. LIN Di (Resigned on 30 October 2015)

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Jp

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group’s direction and strategy. Details of the attendance
of the Board of Directors are as follows:

=Rl E

(2)
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17 Mar 2015 8 May 2015 11 Aug 2015 11 Nov 2015 30 Dec 2015

—®B-If C®-If C-T-Ef C-%¥-IF C-T-IF
=A++tH #ANB NB+-H +—-B+-H +=A=+H
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping* HEFrLE" NA REA  NATER  NATER  NATER NATER
Ms. LI Xia TETL v/ v v v v
Mr. LIN Di* R3S A v/ v v NATREAR NAD#EA
Mr. CHEN Yin PRE kL v v/ v v v/
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MR R E v/ v/ v v v/
Ms. LU Haina B+ v v/ X v v/
Ms. NA Xin Aar &+ v v v v v
#  Appointed on 17 February 2016 R ZE—NF_HA1+HEZT
*  Resigned on 30 October 2015 * R —F - pE+ H =+ AEHF

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to
review company business pipeline, receivables, and
business unit performance. Senior Management meets
with Business Unit Management every week to review
project status, and business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’'s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rule.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence of Directors

All the directors do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company's independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every new appointed director should
receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, including but not limited to the changes
in respect of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and latest developments in connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
also attended a number of seminars/courses in relation to
continuous professional developments organized by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants during
the year in 2015.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions,
except for the following deviation as described below:

Mr. Lin Di (“Mr. Lin") resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 30 March 2015 and following his
resignation, Ms. Li Xia (“Ms. Li”), the Chairman at the
time, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer.

Being aware of the said deviation from Code A.2.1 of
the Code Provisions, but in view of the current rapid
development of the Group, the Board believes that with
the support of the management team, vesting the roles
of both Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of
its operation. In addition, under the supervision by the
Board, which comprised of two executive Directors,
including Ms. Li, and three independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015,
the interests of the Shareholders and Stakeholders was
adequately and fairly represented.

The Company has sought to re-comply with Code
A.2.1 of the Code Provisions with its best endeavours
by identifying and appointing a suitable and qualified
candidate to the position of the Chief Executive Officer.
Having considered Ms. Li's experiences in the industry,
the Company considers it to be more suitable and to
the best interests of the Company for Ms. Li to remain
as the Chief Executive Officer. Ms. Li resigned as the
Chairman of the Board on 17 February 2016 and Mr.
Chong Yu Ping was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board on 17 February 2016. Such was in line with the
requirement under the Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions
and demonstrated a clear division of the responsibilities
between Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (4) BEZRZEES
The Audit Committee was established on 11 August EZZESERN _ZEZEZEFNA+—HBK
2000. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to vag %M%E@Z ETEAMA HE
review and supervise the financial reporting process and BREEZFERERIZENUKRAIPEIETR
internal control procedures of the Group. F o
The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in BAIER FHARBISTENEEC.3. 3%5’]
accordance with Code C.3.3 of the Code Provisions BEZLZESLKEIRESE DR
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board FZA-t+—HETHNE QQE%L?{%%
Meeting held on 21 March 2012. 4 o
The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised EZEZESRBAUEINIERNTEEMK
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of A BER A R AT L PR AR o
whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam MRBEEERBEZEZESZER °
Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review EZEEeHIRETEEEFRTNURS
with senior management and at least twice a year with g% CWEARANFZHAEESRVETRR
the Company's auditors for the Company's audit findings, @ MARNRCZERER F @:tHEL
accounting policies and standards, changes of accounting B @sHRBEESH(NAE) BT TR
rules (if any), compliance with listing rules, internal and A - NEREZESIE JBE NS R
audit control, and budget and cash flow forecast. EEHEETER -
The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results ERLZESCEMAERHEEZE_T—1F
and audited annual results during the year ended 31 + A=t HUEFERZARERETE
December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit DR ENKEZFEEE  E%EE
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements CRAZERRODBNER 2 @528 -
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that WEELFTDETE -
adequate disclosures have been made.
Details of the attendance of members at Audit EREEeKERFELZ BN -
Committee meeting are as follows:
17 Mar 2015 8 May 2015 11 Aug 2015 11 Nov 2015
—E-hF —E-RE —E-1F —E-HF
=A++tH FANR NA+—-B +—-HB+-—H
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRE ST E v/ v v/ v
Ms. LU Haina BEEIR L+ v X v v
Ms. NA Xin BT £ v v/ v/ v/
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10
May 2005. The Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management’s
remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of Remuneration
Committee in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code
Provisions of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the
Board meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least
one regular meeting in a year. During the year under
review, the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr.
Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the
Remuneration Committee Meeting on 30 December
2015.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is to assist Board of
Directors of the Company to deal with matters in relation
to appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the Nomination
Committee Meeting on 30 December 2015.

gl

T — hFF
17

(5)

(6)

B R -

FHMEERCR _FTTRFAATEMK
T HFMEEGNRALTLEEERS
BERANBZHHEARRBOESER
fiE -

BRAIFR _ETAR RIS RRSCEB1.216M
FHZEeRERERECR _F—=
FZA-T-RBOZEFESHR LER
e

FNEE SR ABUINITESTMREL
ERMIT L L - ARRITERFEL LR
MR - MRBEEERFHEZEEER °

FNZEEREFETEL - AERS
& DEFEARN  FMERESKEMKE
£ FERLRBRLIR-_FT—HF
tT-A=TALEFHEREEE -

REZEE
RBEZEeP N _E——F=HA=-1+—H
M - IREBZEE B ARREES R
BEBEIEEEKNEZEE -

BRI R AR ST RIMRSCE A L2115
MR ZESEMREREE N _F——
FZA-T-BHBTZEZEER LER
oo

REAZESHABIIFNTEEMNRE S
ERMHT L L - ARRITERFEL LR
MR - MARBLEERRBZEGER °

REZEEREBFETELI KR EHE
& MEFERN  RERBEGKEMKRE
TE - FERLIRBHLIRN_FT—1F
T-A=tHLFREZEgE% -



(7)

(8)

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRSE

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. Our current Company Secretary
is Mr. Zhao Zhipeng, appointed on 30 June 2015, is
responsible for facilitating the process of implementing
the Board’'s decision, as well as communications
between Board members and the management
team, and advising the Board and its committees on
all governance matters. Ms. Cheung Yuet Wah, Eva
resigned on 30 June 2015.

The biographical details of Ms. Cheung Yuet Wah, Eva
and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng are set out on page 37 of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirms that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors adopted by
the Company throughout the twelve months ended 31
December 2015.
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(9) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (9)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the
Auditors to the Group is as follows:

BN &

HE_ZT-—AF+-_A=+—HILFE -
AR R YR B (7 A = B AR AR B JE
ZURBROBNE T

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T TFHIT

Fees breakdown by accounting firms B RERE:HETEIS

Grant Thornton* ECSTES i
Annual audit services FEZERS 758 1,000
Non-audit services IERZHERTS = 5
758 1,005

Other professional CPA firms HAth B TR T

Annual audit services FEZERS 229 168
Total =t 987 1,173
* Grant Thornton (including Grant Thornton and Grant * KA S AN FEHA (BRI AE

Thornton Hong Kong Limited, hereinafter referred to as
“Grant Thornton”).

B (R EBER) REF(EE) e
B EBFERAE - LT 2 A&
BREFAT)

(10) INTERNAL CONTROLS (10) AEBES 4=

The Board recognises that a sound and effective internal
control system will contribute to the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial
reporting and the Group’s compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.
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The Board has delegated to the management team
of the Company the implementation of such internal
control systems as well as the review of relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures. Qualified personnels and
individual business unit heads of the Group maintain and
monitor the compliance of these internal control systems
and procedures on an ongoing basis and report variances
to senior management.

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the
internal control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied
that:

o the internal controls and accounting systems of
the Group are designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to material assets of the Group are
protected, business risks attributable to the Group
are identified and monitored, material transactions
are executed in accordance with management'’s
authorisation and the accounts are reliable for
publication; and

o there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(11) COMMUNICATION WITH

SHAREHOLDERS

The rights of shareholders and the procedure for demanding
a poll on resolutions at general meetings are contained in
the Company’s Bye-laws. Pursuant to which and subject
to the GEM Listing Rules, the voting of shareholders at
a general meeting must be taken by poll. In addition, an
announcement on the poll vote results will be made by the
Company following the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders
by way of keeping them informed of the Company’s
development through annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, announcements and circulars issued by
the Company from time to time.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 40 to 140.
The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the “Financial Summary"”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages b, pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 11
respectively of this annual report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five years is set out on page 5 of the annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 45 and note 32 to the
financial statements respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Ms. LI Xia (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lin Di (resigned on 30 October 2015)

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
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Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Chong Yu Ping, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 34 to 37.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with Mr. Chong
Yu Ping for an initial term of three year from 17 February 2016
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company and in accordance
with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "GEM Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company

EERFTETBRAERERTAZR
7 HEROEREZFREZEER

/K )'E (%)

RAABEREEI0CGEAEBRZEFR

Number of ordinary shares held

BRELERYE
Percentage of
Held by the issued
Beneficial Held controlled share capital
Name of Director Owner by family corporation Total of the Company
BADRE T

EEpE BREEAA MEERE HAZELRIER st BRAB S

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping #fEF5&4 - - 312,606,140 312,606,140 26.30%

(appointed on 17 February 2016) (Note 1)

(R=ZFB—NFZA++HEZF) (1)

Ms. LI Xia TELTL - - 312,606,140 312,606,140 26.30%

(Note 1)
(Hii£1)
Mr. CHEN Yin PRE LA - - 110,303,827 110,303,827 9.28%
(Note 2)
(H#22)

Notes: Hitat -

(1) These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent (1) FERGBTEREERLHEATA T ZEKE
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is BAGIHEE @ ZRNGlEEREER G R FE
owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited and B EHEE RN ARG FYEZE])
75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”), DENFFEBF25% % 75% FR1#E o F B Gk
a company incorporated in the PRC which is held as to 80% Bk T RG] - A EF A EES0% R
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is o RERERANGHAIEFEEBBIEE
deemed to be interested in 312,606,140 shares held by Sino Y| BEZER IR - BT (- S A 5 1E A R
Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled L H RN GlHEE 2312606, 140 -7 P HH

(2)

by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his shareholding in Shenzhen
Yihua. Ocean Expert Investments Limited is a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly owned by
Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be interested in 312,606,140
shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent
Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her shareholding in
Ocean Expert Investments Limited and through her acting as the
sole director of Sino Eminent Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as at 31 December 2015.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued

share capital of the Company.

FERR

RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H BARAFRER
FHEMEEEGIEIBCRTEZEERELMAT
& THREDMEARARRNRARRDEITHRA
FHEEEEREERAE -

Percentage of

Number of  the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of Shareholder Notes shares held Company
BECRT ERARE T
RE®E 2B ik EER#E ENEpil
Sino Eminent Limited ERARAA 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd FITEERE RO BRAF 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Ocean Expert Investments Limited HRREBRLA 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Ms. LI Xia FELT | 312,606,140 26.30%
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HETEE 1 312,606,140 26.30%
Confluence Holdings Limited &R AR AT 2 91,034,166 7.65%
Mr. LIN Di S tips 2 91,034,166 7.65%
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited RIMTERARAA 3 143,233,151 12.05%
Flourish Zone Limited REARLA 4 110,303,827 9.28%
Mr. CHEN Yin BREgE 4 110,303,827 9.28%
Alps Mountain Agent Limited Alps Mountain Agent Limited 3 71,969,151 6.06%
iBusiness Corporation Limited EREEERAT 3 67,264,000 5.66%
Notes: BtaE -
(1) These shares have been disclosed as Directors’ interests held by (1) EZERGEHEIEERFETBRABRARALZ

controlled corporation in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”.

Bt WK RESTIEZ #aw RAKR | —
BREBERARENTIFENEFE S -



Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(2) Confluence Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Di.
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Di is deemed to be interested in the
91,034,166 shares interested by Confluence Holdings Limited.

(3) CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”) is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meetings of Alps Mountain Agent
Limited (“Alps”) and iBusiness Corporation Limited (“iBusiness”).
Accordingly, CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in
143,233,151 shares of the Company of which 71,969,151 shares
are held by Alps and 67,264,000 shares are held by iBusiness
under the SFO.

(4) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 110,303,827
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company at 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 13.35% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 6.08% of the Group's turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 38.47% of
the Group’'s total purchases and the Group’'s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 18.38% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEWRE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s continuing connected transactions are mainly
transactions in respect of the sales of gold and jewellery and
purchase of showcases for the brand H< H.K. JEWELRY that
are made with companies in which certain Directors have
interests, such transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
the GEM Listing Rules.

In contemplating the Master Agreement |, Master Agreement
I, Master Agreement Ill and Master Agreement |V, all dated
18 September 2013 and entered into by Golden HK Jewellery
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* (“Golden HK Jewellery”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, would be expired
by 31 December 2015, Golden HK Jewellery entered into
the New Master Agreement |, New Master Agreement I,
New Master Agreement Ill and New Master Agreement IV
with Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited* (“Baidi
Jewellery"”), Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union Investment
Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”), Shenzhen Didi Jewellery
Packaging Company Limited* (“Didi Packaging”) and Hangzhou
Didi Commercial Showcases Company Limited* (“Didi
Showecases”), respectively on 30 December 2015, to continue
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions for a
further term of three years ending 31 December 2018.

On 31 December 2015, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Yihua"”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and Golden HK Jewellery entered into the framework
leasing agreement (the “Framework Leasing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Yihua as the lessor has agreed to
lease the office premises owned by Shenzhen Yihua to Golden
HK Jewellery as the lessee for the purpose of Golden HK
Jewellery conducting its daily operation.

*  For identification purpose only
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING EENEEBREXRZ Z2HZFH#)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions x5
Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2015 2014
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms “E-HF C—Z—NOF
(a) B2 HK$°000 HK$'000
REFER REME (b) HAPR FTHET THET
(1) Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company  Sales of gold and Master Agreement | - 4,852
Limited ("Baidi Jewellery”) jewellery products (a) 18 September 2013
(Note 2) HEZSHKEEM (b) 18 September 2013 -
MNBERKERRAR([B@HKE]) 31 December 2015
(Hrit2) B
(m:;—_iﬂﬂ+ﬂﬁ
b) ZE—=FNA+NBE
—hAFTZA=1+—H

New Master Agreement |
(a) 30 December 2015
(b) 1 January 2016 -
31 December 2018
FiE
(o) ZE—HF+-A=1H
b) —E—A~F—A—H=Z
ZE-N\F+ZA=t—H

(1) Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union  Sales of gold and Master Agreement || 1,217 341
Investment Company Limited jewellery products (a) 18 September 2013
("Zhong Chuang") (Note 1) HESSUEER (b) 18 September 2013 -
R EEARERRAR 31 December 2015
(el (krezr) ezl
(m:;—_¢HH+AE
b)) ZE—=FNA+/\HZE
—REF+=ZA=+—H

New Master Agreement I
(a) 30 December 2015
(b) 1 January 2016 -

31 December 2018
GipaEA |
(o) ZE—RF+-A=1H
b) =% /\E H—RZE

—NE+ZA=+—H
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING EEZNEEE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

BR5 2NE @)

Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2015 2014
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms “E-1Ff Z—Z—MOF
(a) B2 HK$°000 HK$'000
ReHEH XZHE (b) HARR FTET TET
(I Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Packaging Purchase of Master Agreement Il 282 699
Company Limited ("Didi packaging (a) 18 September 2013
Packaging”) (Note 2) materials for (b) 18 September 2013 -
A E AR AR A A the jewellery 31 December 2015
([ae s ) (ffz2) products Al
BEREEM BE (m_i— ENATNH
mE b) ZE—=FNA+NBE
—hFE+ZHA=+—H
New Master Agreement Il
(a) 30 December 2015
(b) 1 January 2016 -
31 December 2018
R
(a):i hFE+-ZA=1H
b) —E—A~"F—HA—H=Z
ZE-NF+ZA=t—H
(IV)  Hangzhou Didi Commercial Purchase of Master Agreement IV 326 844
Showcases Company Limited showcases for the  (a) 18 September 2013
("Didi Showcases") (Note 2) brand (b) 18 September 2013 -
iEeEERASRAR (meE  FIIHK JEWELRY 31 December 2015
B1)(H3#2) BEHH F5%ER apzv
I AR (m::—:¢HH+AE
b) ZE—=FNA+/\HZE
—hE+ZA=+—H

New Master Agreement IV
(a) 30 December 2015
(b) 1 January 2016 -

31 December 2018
sV
(o) ZE—RF+-A=1H
b) =% /\E A—HZ

—N\E+=ZA=+—H

—RFFR
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING EENEEBREXRZ Z2HZFH#)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2015 2014

Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E-RF —E-NF

(a) 3% B 28 HK$'000 HK$'000

ReHEH REME (b) HARR THET TER

(V) Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company  Operating lease Framework Leasing Agreement 1,674 -

Limited (“Shenzhen Yihua") charges on land

(a) 31 December 2015

(Note 3) and building (b) 1 January 2015 -
AHEEREEHRNDBERRT) THREFRERE 31 December 2017
(DRI ) (H:F3) ER EREERZ

(@) Z2—AF+-_A=+—H
b) —E2—HE—A—HZ

Relationship between Connected Parties

Notes:

(1)

2)

(3)

Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the brother of Ms. Li Xia.
Accordingly, Zhong Chuang is an associate of Ms. Li Xia, and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi Showcases is
respectively owned as to 90%, 65% and 80% by Hangzhou
Didi Investment Joint Stock Company Limited, which in turn
is owned as to 10% and 90% by Mr. Lin Di and his father
respectively. Therefore, each of Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging
and Didi Showcases is an associate of Mr. Lin Di, and hence
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Lin Di resigned as an executive Director
on 30 October 2015.

Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 26.30% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and is owned as to 80% by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Mr. Chong Yu Ping was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 February 2016.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Relationship between Connected Parties (Continued)

Therefore, transactions under Master Agreement (I) to (IV)
and the New Master Agreement (I) to (IV) above constitute
Continuing Connected Transactions of this Company under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Master Agreement (I) to (IV) expired on 31 December 2015
and the above Continuing Connected Transactions under the
New Master Agreement () to (IV) and the Framework Leasing
Agreement are subject to various annual cap amounts disclosed
in the Company’'s announcement dated 30 December 2015.
Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the above announcement unless
specified otherwise.

Opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that: (i) the terms and conditions
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions are on
normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the independent shareholders are concerned; (ii) the
respective proposed annual caps for the Continuing Connected
Transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2018 are
fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders are
concerned; and (iii) the Continuing Connected Transactions are
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

gl
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Opinion of the Auditors

The Company’s Auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditors have issued an
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by
the Group above in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Auditors have reported to the Directors
that the above Continuing Connected Transactions: (1) have
received the approval of the Board; (2) are in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company; (3) have been carried out
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the
relevant annual caps.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company's
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 12 to 20.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2016
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEHREEAEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 50)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has over
20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and investment
industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong has been
appointed as the general manager and executive director of
a private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Limited* (&3l
MEEGREEH AR QA and from 2011 to present, he is the
director and legal representative of Shenzhen Yihua, a company
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
under the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Directors’ Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as
an executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on
17 February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 42)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggqiu Investment Development Limited*, and was appointed
as executive vice president with her experience and strength
in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for administration
and human resource management, marketing operations and
brand promotion. With her leadership, the company achieved
a healthy growth. At the same time, Ms. Li also served as
the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser for Baidi
Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent results,
which made her the veteran in the jewellery business. Ms. Li
graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic of the
Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration. Ms. Li has been an executive Director of the
Group since 3 July 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2015, Ms. Li was the Chairman of the Company and held the
position as the Chief Executive Officer following the resignation
of Mr. Lin as described below. Ms. Li was redesignated as the
Chief Executive officer on 17 February 2016.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSHREEABER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LIN Di (Age 29)

Mr. Lin graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic
of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Lin held important positions in Hangzhou Didi Investment
Co., Limited*, Baidi Jewellery and Hangzhou Didi Lighting
Electronics Limited (”Didi Lighting”). When serving as the
Brand Development Manager and the jewellery Chief Operating
Officer for Baidi Jewellery, Mr. Lin promoted the company
into the large well-known shopping malls in Jiaxing, Wuxi,
Hangzhou, Ningbo, Suzhou and Huzhou in the short term, and
achieved excellent results. During the period of working for Didi
Lighting, Mr. Lin led a team in jewellery light source design.
The LED light designed by his team quickly took a leap into the
jewellery market, becoming an irreplaceable light source for
high-end branded jewellery counters. Mr. Lin was also invited
by Didi Showcases to design the jewellery counters and light
sources, presenting a perfect combination of LED lights and
jewellery counters. Mr. Lin was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Group on 3 July 2012 and resigned as the
Chief Executive Officer on 30 March 2015 and as an executive
Director on 30 October 2015.

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 34)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America (“GIA"). Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSHREEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 40)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.

Ms. LU Haina (Age 37)

Ms. Lu possesses over 8 years of experience in education in
relation to jewellery design. From 2005 to 2010, Ms. Lu taught at
the school of jewellery of Guangzhou Panyu Polytechnic. Since
2010, Ms. Lu has been teaching at Guangzhou International
Economics College. Ms. Lu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University
with a bachelor degree in arts and design and is a holder of a
jewellery designer certificate verified by All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce. Ms. Lu has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.

Ms. NA Xin (Age 35)

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of FIMNEXKE S
#iAFR /2] (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd), a company
specialized in qualified jewellery trading business from 2008
to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive officer for
Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch (/NEZFdE3E
GRETE) DA F]) from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her
Bachelor's degree in English in the School of Humanities and
Social Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known
as the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSHREEABER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHEUNG Yuet Wah, Eva (Age 37)

Ms. Cheung was appointed as the authorised representative,
compliance officer and company secretary of the Company on 18
August 2014 and resigned on 30 June 2015. She was awarded
the Common Professional Examination Certificate of England
and Wales by the Manchester Metropolitan University external
program in 2008 and was awarded her Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws by The University of Hong Kong in 2009. She was awarded
the Master of Laws in WTO Law by the City University of Hong
Kong in 2006. She also holds an Honours of Bachelor of Science
degree awarded by the University of Toronto in 2001.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (Age 33)

Authorised Representative, Compliance Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Zhao was appointed as the authorised representative,
compliance officer and company secretary of the Company on
30 June 2015. Mr. Zhao is currently a registered solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong. He holds the Bachelor degree
of laws (PRC Law) awarded by The East China University of
Political Science and Law. He was awarded the Master of Laws
in Common Law by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2007 and the Juris Doctor degree by the City University of
Hong Kong in 2009 respectively. Further, in 2011, Mr. Zhao
was awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws by the City
University of Hong Kong.

Dr. CHU Junying (Age 53)

Legal Consultant

Dr. Chu received a doctorate degree from Yunnan University.
She served as a lecturer in university for 29 years. She
became a qualified lawyer in 1994. She specialises in civil and
commercial law and is familiar with the legal matters before and
after listing. She worked as a legal consultant in various large-
scale enterprises in Mainland China and is currently served as
the Company’s legal consultant.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RHBENRE

Q Grant Thornton
© HA

To the members of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company’’) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 40 to 140, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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ERREZERAER AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RHBENRE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

21 March 2016

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 {2 —F—AF+_—H=+—HILFZE

2015 2014
—B-HE T — M4
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B =E F#E T T
Revenue WA 5 174,741 499,375
Other income H A UezE 7 5,353 6,427
Change in inventories FE# 15,571 (86,830)
Purchase of goods BEER (61,668) (223,747)
Professional fee BEXEH (19,239) (21,712)
Employee benefits expense EERFNHEX 12 (111,456) (156,810)
Depreciation and amortisation YTE MY (3,675) (4,776)
Other expenses HiFAx (30,760) (38,161)
Finance costs PiBER 8 (368) (377)
Share of result of an associate FEE — B AR FEE 16 (1,490) -
Loss before income tax HIBRFr SR BIEE 9 (32,991) (26,611)
Income tax expense FriS i 2 10 (1,566) (559)
Loss for the year FREIE (34,557) (27,170)
Other comprehensive expense FREMZERX -
for the year, after tax* 2 HRBIE*
Items that will be reclassified HiggEHmoizE
subsequently to profit or loss: B %Zlﬁiﬂ
Exchange loss on translation of financial — #BREBINEHEITIE
statements of foreign operations T WE HEE (5,178) (1,305)
Total comprehensive expense FAZEBEX
for the year pbo] (39,735) (28,475)
Loss for the year attributable to: FELERERE :
Owners of the Company FiN/N _H?ﬁﬁ/\ (28,467) (27,019)
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS RE RS (6,090) (151)
(34,557) (27,170)
Total comprehensive expense EhE2EEX
attributable to: 4zE
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2 =D/N (33,559) (28,276)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 (6,176) (199)
(39,735) (28,475)
Loss per share for loss attributable to RKABREEAER
owners of the Company during the year E{iERERE
— Basic and diluted —EARK#E 11 (2.40 HK centsEfl) (2.27 HK centsi&fll)
* There is no tax effect on the component of other * HE-_ZT—AFR-ZT—NF+=ZA=+—H

comprehensive expense for the years ended 31 December Lty\iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi\@ﬁrﬁfiE’U%ﬁﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁﬁf?ﬁﬁ%

2015 and 2014. HERIEE 2
The notes on pages 46 to 140 are an integral part of these FEAEEE Eo o A e e ks
consolidated financial statements. -

B —&B1D



ERREZERAER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

as at 31 December 2015 R —ZF—AF+-H=+—H

2015 2014
—E-hHEF —F-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
{Ea FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE N E&E 14 6,562 10,795
Interest in an associate 1] kNl o ey 16 40,051 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRERE 17 — =
Goodwill EES 18 - -
Development costs F B AR 19 - =
Deferred tax assets REFIEEE 29 - 1,307
46,613 12,102
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 43,906 28,335
Amounts due from customers JEREF &4 TIEFIE
for contract work 21 25,842 44,440
Trade receivables JEUE SRR 22 23,686 49,594
Other receivables, deposits and HmpElsis - imek
prepayments TES IR 23 22,413 26,586
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABREER
through profit or loss ZEREE 24 - 26,945
Bank balances and cash RITFEAFRIRS 25 33,563 86,872
149,410 262,772
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JERTE SR 26 24,404 32,536
Other payables and accrued charges HEt o MIEIRER 27 29,885 58,117
Borrowings BE 28 4,098 3,964
Amounts due to customers ERERAELHIIERIE
for contract work 21 3,277 10,165
Amounts due to directors JESE SRR 30 9,552 5,355
Tax payables FERTTRIE 750 945
71,966 111,082
Net current assets REBEEFE 77,444 151,690
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERAEBES 124,057 163,792
Net assets BEEFE 124,057 163,792
—T—REER



Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BRI R

as at 31 December 2016 R=—ZF—AF+—-HA=4+—H

2015 2014
—B-AHF —E-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& FET T
EQUITY [
Share capital [N 31 118,846 118,846
Reserves fE 32 6,776 40,335
Equity attributable to owners KATHEE ABMLRE
of the Company 125,622 159,181
Non-controlling interests IR ER (1,565) 4,611
Total equity RREREE 124,057 163,792
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HEF
Director 4 Director o

The notes on pages 46 to 140 are an integral part of these SF46HZEF140B WM IR IS EAMBRE
consolidated financial statements. B —Ehn o
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ERREZERAER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2015 2014
—E—AHF —ET—mF
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
M5 FET T

Cash flows from operating activities RELETEB2HERE
Loss before income tax MRS R AT E 1R (32,991) (26,611)

Adjustments for: S

Depreciation e 3,675 3,966
Amortisation of development costs A B A 2 5E - 810

Reversal of provision for impairment FEU B 2R TR B R

of trade receivables 2 8l = (4)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal/written off HEGEEYE  BER

of property, plant and equipment B F (W) S EE (2) 2,768
Fair value gain on financial assets BARBEFABRRLZ

at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZ AR EAERE (1,477) (260)
Interest expenses MEFMX 368 377
Written down of inventories FE 2R 647 =
Dividend income & Mz (507) (1,332)
Interest income B = (1,184) (1,478)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR ZEE 35 258 =
Share of result of an associate i il /N 1,490 =
Currency translation adjustment YN 3, FE R (2,524) (357)

Operating loss before working EEEREERI L EE
capital changes (32,247) (22,121)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEOEM, B (17,567) 86,830
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due EREFELQIERIE

from customers for contract work w, (38 h0) 13,081 (3,046)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables EE SERFOR L

(4 n) 17,113 (13,700)
Decrease in other receivables, H s -~ mek

deposits and prepayments SELNEEY: 0 2,100 25,350
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets BAnBEFABRRZ

at fair value through profit or loss SRBERLD, (&) 131 (83)
Decrease in trade payables JE B SRR R 4 (5,710) (17,893)
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables H{th fE A~ 5008 N FEIR

and accrued charges BACHD), /BN (3,205) 11,153
(Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to ENEPA4IIRFIAE

customers for contract work (R A) /380 (2,912) 802

Cash (used in)/generated from operations &G (BFH),E4
Tk (29,216) 67,292
Income tax paid BRAEH (501) (110)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities A& ZE)FT(BIF), B4
ZHeHEEE (29,717) 67,182
“E-RFFIHR
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 {2 —F—AF+_—H=+—HILFZE

2015 2014
—E—AHF —E—mF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 F#& T T
Cash flows from investing activities REBREZHZRERE
Advance to an associate BEiliNC E N (3,195) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥% -« BE & &G (889) (3,218)
Proceeds from disposal of property, m%%% E &
plant and equipment BAEFTS R 7 15
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary H&—FMEARZ
e FRE 35 (22,508) -
Dividend received B B 507 1,332
Interest received BB 220 504
Net cash used in investing activities KEZTEEH He FE (25,858) (1,367)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETBHZ2EERE
Repayment of other borrowings EEHMEER - (52,324)
Increase in amounts due to directors FEfTEE SEFIEIE M 4,197 5,355
Repayment of amounts due to directors BEENEEHIE - (2,540)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities FtE& FEIFTEL " (B)fF)
R EFEE 4,197 (49,509)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash TE%&E%%F%Z
and cash equivalents W) IR (51,378) 16,306
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7 ﬁ AzRE &k
RWEEBY 86,872 71,355
Effect on foreign exchange rate EXREFHEMFRS
changes, on cash held ol -2 (1,931) (789)
Cash and cash equivalents at BR+=—A=+-—H
31 December, represented ZEERESEEY -
by bank balances and cash RTERERES 33,563 86,872

The notes on pages 46 to 140 are an integral part of these SE46BZEZF140BHNMTEKILSEATERE
consolidated financial statements. B —Ef5



BERGKHEEZERERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
nV_\éfu-ﬁ_ﬁ % Ej] %%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ALRERARERE
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve* losses* Total interests equity
ke RbEE*  NERE  EiER BE  FERER  REGE
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T TR TiEn T TiEn
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE-BE-F-RAfEs 118,846 220438 7675 (159,502) 187,457 4810 192,267
Loss for the year EngE - - - Qo9 209 {151 27170
Other comprehensive expense Efp2E%
Exchange loss on translation of financial HERIN R RRRN
statements of forsign operations EiBE - - (1,267) - (1,267) (48) (1,305)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FR2ERTAE - - (1,297) (27,019 (28,276) (199) (28,475)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=1-A
and 1 January 2015 R-E-1E-f-Rl4E 118,846 220,438 6,418 (186,521) 159,181 4,611 163,792
Loss for the year EnER - - - (8467)  (2846) (6090  (34557)
Other comprehensive expense A2
Exchange loss on translation of financia RES B HaRR
statements of foreign operations EiEE - - (5,002) - (5,092) (86) (5178)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FA2EHZAE - - (5,092 (28467)  (33,559) (6,176)  (39,735)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E-RETZR=T-RiLe 118,846 220,438 1326  (214988) 125622 (1565) 124,057
* These reserves accounts comprise the Group's reserves of  * ZERBREENGEVBRARALREEREE

HK$6,776,000 (2014: HK$40,335,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 46 to 140 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and, its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company’'s shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company, an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, sale and implementation
of enterprise software and the provision of systems
integration and professional services, design and sales
of gold and jewellery products and investment holding.
The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC").

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 21 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”).
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The amendments to the GEM Listing Rules
relating to financial information with reference
to the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) came into effect for the first time
during the current financial year and the main
impact is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in these consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and their
impact on the Group's financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power over the
entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’'s statement of financial
position, subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Cost includes
directly attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IS ERR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’'s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is
classified as held for sale). The profit or loss for
the year includes the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate recognised for the year.
The Group’s other comprehensive income for the
year includes its share of the associate’'s other
comprehensive income for the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

52

2.

FE

2.4

S HEBE @)

BE QT

BEQNREASEYZERCERE
BEATEN  HAZ2HEBERES
M RIEERRZHES - B I
Bl KR HIZFHEK -

EHRAMBHRETR—HEZE AT
ZEN B IR ATER - BIRERA
BAEARR - WERABBAKHE
FEMREE S R AN W E E B R AT 3
MEE  BEMIRAEZILAE
BZERNBRBENERLEE -BHE
FFAREBREE - WIERKRE
DYEHIRERE o BB ATIZR
BREBMGTEE  IESSRE
ZEERAEEBITZIRATAZ
NABEEE NREEREHRZ
ERIRAETE - BFFHER - A%
BEGAEEE AERIAA
BZ AR FEBBRIBRA Z M
ZEE o gl RBE®R - UE
EASEREERE PR RAR S
RNA N EIR o

mREs L - AEERBERRZ
BERKANER A AEERE
HHERRRNBBRZEEFELZ
BERMER S BRREEEBELR
B HE2BEAFAFEREEETA
DRERRBEERE ZHEHEA) IR
Sh o FRBERBEAREFAEN
BEARKRBRZBRES - 25
EREFACHIARBERRZRE
ZIEFRERE - FAREEZHE
fh2mRm B EERE ZFABE
NAZHpEmEmlEs



2.

BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associate are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group's perspective. Where
the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’'s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value
in use of the investment, the Group estimates its
share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
associate, including cash flows arising from the
operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

25

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate. If the retained interest
in that former asssociate is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate; and (ii) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the
equity method was discontinued, is recognised
in the profit or loss. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would have been
required if the associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 have been treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising on
the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
of associates or joint ventures not involving a
change of accounting basis), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (note 2.19). The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements 20 to 33"/:%

Computer and office equipment 10 to 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20 to 25%
Motor vehicles 25 to 30%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is
recognised as an asset at the date that control
is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2.19).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill relating to
business combinations prior to 1 January 2001
continues to be held in reserves and will be
charged to the retained profits at the time when
the business to which the goodwill relates is
disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii) there is an intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as acquired intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Development costs (Continued)

After initial recognition of the development costs,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use.
The following useful lives are applied:
Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.19.

Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial
assets other than interest in subsidiaries are set
out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists, an
impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for
trading.

gl

T—HFFR
61

2. FE

2.9

SRS E2)

TREEE)

ERERTUESREES B -
RS RRBEESBEENE -
IRFTREEERT - RE2H
BB TR -

FrEEMEEENAKERITA
Z ARG SER - mEMR A B
BEZeRMEERRZERR - &
MEEN S ERRIED A BER
8 mIFRAREBEFABRER
ZERE AN EEERERSKA

NP
ArsA °

BB ER IR E 2 N ERK
BEZE LA EZ @AM REBRAM
CHEEBE - AFIRERERE
E o

THEDHRRE L FBRE - 1
EEWAMHERGNEREE @ I
BARBEAABRERZEHMEE
BRoN - MEEEMZERE AR
TREEZ D HEET RERRER

& -

(i)

RO BEGABERZS
BAEOERIEERZ SR
4% -



Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit-taking.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions.
The fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest
income is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies in note 2.17 to these
consolidated financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost. Interest
is recognised in profit or loss.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. XESTBERBE#®R)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 S@MEEE)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (i) AIRHETHEE
Non-derivative financial assets that do not THFEINAEMEMESTHE
qualify for inclusion in any of the other EERNZFTESREE -
categories of financial assets are classified DoBRRFAELHESHRE
as available-for-sale financial assets. EE
All financial assets within this category P ER Y & mEEH %
are subsequently measured at fair value. BEAREBEFE - AAE
Gain or loss arising from a change in the BEFEL 2N EE
fair value excluding any dividend and (T EEEMR B RF B UK
interest income is recognised in other wm) BREBEEZRER
comprehensive income and accumulated BRI BUER) R AIME IR &=
separately in the investment revaluation MBS - REAM 2 E RS
reserve in equity, except for impairment R AR ERNZEE
losses (see the policy below) and foreign EHREBEBILRE BEEZ
exchange gains and losses on monetary T RVE EWRIE R 2 BR
assets, until the financial asset is I bR B SE
derecognised, at which time the cumulative BERBEREENHERE
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to &= o MABRMEEFEZ
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the FBERBRERPER -

effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary LASNES A B 2 AT E B
assets denominated in a foreign currency BEZANEENEGBEINEG
is determined in that foreign currency and BrE WARHBAERZRE
translated at the spot rate at the end of EERE - AEEHEIENAK
reporting period. The change in fair value BEHABBREEZEREELZ A
attributable to translation differences that hEEEHTESTRER -
result from a change in amortised cost of i £ b S B) I 72 E b 2 IR
the asset is recognised in profit or loss, WIER ©

and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale investments in equity Al & 2 B AR H I E 0
securities that do not have a quoted market BEERME®RE  MERQ
price in an active market and whose fair RBETEAISEGE UKk
value cannot be reliably measured and iz TAETABRBR
derivatives that are linked to and must be NZEERERATAEZH
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity NEE - ARV HEREZ
instruments, they are measured at cost & 2MBRILEAER M
less any identified impairment losses at the EFAIRERIEFE

end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition.
—T-RFEFER
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

- The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREPB®R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
The amount of the impairment losses is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs and are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivables
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unguoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise merchandise held
for resale, raw materials and finished goods, are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is determined
using the first in, first out method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand and demand deposits with banks.

2.12 Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities mainly include trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors and
other borrowings. They are included in line items
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to directors and borrowings
under current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit of loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.
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2.

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(if)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals,
if any, are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

—F-AFf_A=1—HIFE

2.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

70

BHRFEBE )

214 #HE

1 7 £ )R TE 0 165 R B 3 R 7 5 E
BECAELENGR—F—&
BNRZLY - BE-ARSH—
EBRRGZHZARHBRAEE —
BHE - REREDERLHAR
ZEEFEMEL - MAWZEAR
BERARBMEE AR -

(i) 7 EEI T

FAEE
HRAE BB EREHE
E - WREEREENEA
047 R ) SR A A
B AEAEREANRE
HERS MRS A
BIE BRI ER R E R
BBEEAEE - HEAT
T -

(i) EREAMAZKEHES LD

MASEERERLERE
RBEZEE » AIREBEHEEH
AEE Z AR - LUERER
MERARERERPIIX
HEH o BB B 1 b [ AR
HMEEEMEL 2 WHEER
BRoh - HEMPRZEEE
BEHEBRRRTEIRLFE
ERIBEBEAREMD - K
KEE(WREIREEZ G
HRA BRIk -



BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the
consideration received or receivable for the
sales of goods, rendering of services and the
use by others of the Group’s assets yielding
interest, royalties and dividends, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHHEHSE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WARRE)
Jewellery Products PR B 2

Sales of gold and jewellery products are
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.

Franchise income in respect of the use of the
Group's brand is recognised on an accrual
basis over the terms of the relevant franchise
agreements.

IT Products and Services

In circumstances where the contract price can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the elements
of resale of hardware and software products,
sales of software licences and development of
customised software, revenue is recognised as
described below:

(a) Revenue from resale of complementary
hardware and software products is
recognhised when the goods are delivered
and title has been passed;

(b) Revenue from sales of software licences is
recognised upon delivery of the software
products to the customer when there are
no post-delivery obligations;

(c) Revenue from the development of
customised software is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
customisation work (including post-delivery
service support) at the end of the reporting
period, as measured by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed in relation
to the design and prescribed services as
agreed with customers to be rendered in
different phases.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTBEEME®)
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WARRE)

IT Products and Services (Continued)

Where the contract price cannot be allocated into
individual elements of the sales of enterprise
software products and custom development,
revenue from sales of enterprise software
products and custom development is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
sales of enterprise software products and custom
development (including post-delivery service
support) at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction.

Maintenance service income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant maintenance service contracts. Where
maintenance service income is not separately
invoiced, it is unbundled from licence fees and
deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant maintenance
service contracts.

Systems integration income and professional
services income are recognised when the services
are provided

Other income

Consultancy and management fee income in
respect of technical support, consultancy services
and management services are recognised in the
period when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

“E-RFFIHR
73

\

WA EREAHEDCERFER
MRBBTEMFEFREATOR -
AREHECXRE M EMR BRI E
mpAEZ WA - THIREHIMAREE
R AR EmAR(BERN
‘IR IR) 2 EARBEBER - I
DERLSHEL ZRABERZE
EEZBKAHE -

RERBWEAEREIZEBERE
RIS E M HRIER  MHIRERBI
SWIFBIRARE - AT EHE
REEREER  HRABRER
BEOFRUABREET KRR

s
N

BX

R Woas M BRI 2 s
IR ARG S HERR ©

yr '&\—
Hmihzs

zZ

BREARMIE - BRREAKER
Rz BE R EEE RSN IRBE
HEIRERER -

A B s SR A B R A ORI L
I EEAERERR o

B aS T U R R IR 2 4 A R AL By



2.

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Contract for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs
of rendering services comprise labour and other
costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services
is recognised based on the percentage of
completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated
costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by
reference to the estimated stage of completion (see
note 2.17).

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon
as they are anticipated by management.

Where estimated value of work performed
exceeds progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers for
contract work.

Where progress billings exceed estimated value
of work performed, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers for contract
work.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment
testing:

o Goodwill arising on acquisition of a
subsidiary;

° Development costs;

o Property, plant and equipment; and

° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Goodwill and development costs with indefinite
useful lives or those not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose and is not larger than an
operating segment.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated,
are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.21

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, Malaysia and Singapore are
required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

2.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
sales of products, including enterprise
software products, systems integration and
professional services
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

SREPB®R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Segment reporting (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that corporate income and
expenses which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment and
are not allocated to a segment.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if:

(a) the party is a person, or a close member of
that person’s family and if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
or

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has

significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2015

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA, which are effective for the Group's financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2015:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

—F-AFf_A=1—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 3. BT UREBITEBTE
HKFRSs (continued) MEZER|(2)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2015 (Continued)

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the
amendments to HKFRSs had no material impact on how
the results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments clarify the requirements of HKAS
19 relating to contributions from employees or third
parties and introduce a practical expedient such that
contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service may be treated as a reduction of
service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

The amendments do not have any impact on the Group
as the Group does not operate a defined benefit plan.
The Group has applied the practical expedient as its
accounting policy. This treatment is consistent with
the Group’s previous practice before the amendments.
Therefore, the initial application of the amendments
has no effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 and 2011- T EFR T FR T ——F
2013 Cycles —E-ZFAREEUEREERZFE
I2¢::3

The amendments contained in these two cycles of
annual improvements set out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs. Other than those that are relevant to the
Group, the adoption of these amendments has no
material impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial
results or positions.
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BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2015 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 and 2011-
2013 Cycles (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Operating Segments” require
disclosures of the judgements made in identifying the
reportable segment when operating segments have been
aggregated and clarifies that reconciliation between the
total reporting segments’ assets and the entity’'s assets
is required only if the segment assets are regularly
reported to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no significant impact on the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
amends the definition of a ‘related party’ to include
‘management entities’ that provide key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, requires the
disclosure of the amounts recognised as a service fee
to a separate management entity for the provision of the
key management personnel services and provides a relief
so that disclosure of components of the compensation
to key management personnel where is paid via a
management entity is not required. The amendments
do not have any impact on the Group's related party
disclosures as the Group did not pay any service fee to a
separate management entity for the provision of the key
management personnel services.
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Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 3. HMHITURLEITE BB
HKFRSs (Continued) HEZEA (@)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs EAMERERZEBMKHREEL
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated RERETBEEGRETHHRERERD - BT
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs FEI M RIEFTE BT SRS ERKE D18
have been published but are not yet effective, and have HEEEAREN BV ERAEBRIREFEFE
not been adopted early by the Group. W o
The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements EEEE  FTACAMZIEE  BRAMH
will be adopted in the Group's accounting policy for E ARG ERAR T AERE et
the first period beginning after the effective date of the BEARNEA - EFRIFTIHLESEEMGE
pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing the IREMER| 2 - BIEERRAEEBE LS
impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet in the position ERMBRE LS TEAER B ER
to state whether they would have any material impact on REKFMERFE -
the Group’s financial statements.
Information on these new pronouncements that FEEREAREE 7 B SR AAE 2 F R ET
are expected to be relevant to the Group's financial W2 ERFMNR T °
statements is provided below:
Effective for accounting R T%IBH
periods beginning EA -3
on or after SRR AR
Annual Improvements to —E—FEZ T —NOF
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016 BAEAE B SRS AR
< FE#E —E—R"F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 BB ST ERE 15 218E]
Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Wt —ZE—XRF—HA—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 BB TSRS AR F o5
TRT A —ZE-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from FE SR E R 155
Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 KEEEAEH
Z WA —=—N\F—HA—H
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. EE&iH{hstR Y

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

e IS ERR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the net book value of
a long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets. The carrying amounts
of long lived assets are reviewed periodically in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. It is difficult
to precisely estimate fair value less cost of disposal
because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the
asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant estimation relating to the level
of sales volume, selling prices and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of sales
volume, selling prices and the amount of operating
costs. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was HK$6,562,000
(2014: HK$10,795,000).

EE

4.1

St st RAE =)

EES AT RER

REBEFARKEL B RERR - ]
BHEEE  BBHZEHEA S
HOEHBERERER - TXw
BEBH T —VRFERAZEER
BECHEAMEENEAHBZEX
R e B R SR R R

= R AR 1.2 Bl E

WIENBRRBPEEZRMFENY
e E - EEERIR e R
BURE] - WARBESSFEL
FIREERBEBERBEREE -
EHEEZEREES THERN - U
AR S ERET TR ERNE
HE - EFEHENREEHBETEE
ZASREENEEAKEE - A
BEEFESETRENR - IR
BETERHR @ REEESHEAK
Ol£% - AIREeBIAERARLE
BEREERTNEFHEBEREFR 2
BeEirHE - ARASEE UES
BEZARME - B E#AERE
B AREERLEERAE - £ET
FREEBR  ZEEMESZTEE
ReneEelhR=HERE  Ems
ZHHEKT EERLEERASE
EMEXRMET - NEBEEETE K
EeEsAEROSERSRAM
BRARBZER  BEREAER
BKIE 2 BRERFTEL 2 fl 5T A R 8
2 BEREEXNAZTEN - R
T-HAE+-A=+—H8  WE -
B & &4 2 BRE {8 46,562,000
BL(ZZE—EF :10,795,0007%
TT) °




4.

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of trade and other
receivables. A considerable amount of estimation
and judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
their current creditworthiness, past collection
history and financial condition. If the financial
conditions of these parties were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance will be required.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$23,686,000 (2014
HK$49,594,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of jewellery
products is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycle. Written
down of inventories amounted to HK$647,000
(2014: HK$Nil) was provided for the year ended
31 December 2015. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$43,906,000 (2014:
HK$28,335,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

e MR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)
Deferred tax

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets of
HKS$Nil (2014: HK$168,000) in relation to unused
tax losses have been recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$87,397,000
(2014: HK$71,026,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are
less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal or
further recognition takes place.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. At 31 December
2015, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
HK$1,899,000 (2014: HK$6,082,000). Deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets was HK$Nil (2014
HK$1,307,000) (see note 29).
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

Critical judgements in applying the
entity’s accounting policies
Development activities

Careful judgment by the Company’s management
is applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and
may be subject to future technical problems at
the time of recognition. Judgments are based on
the best information available at the end of each
reporting period. In addition, all internal activities
related to the development of new software,
products or knowhow are continuously monitored
by the Company’'s management.

REVENUE AND TURNOVER

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the
Group is the revenue from these activities.

Revenue from external customers from the Group's

BEESTH AT RHE &)

4.2

ERERCEHRRKZEE
H
%58

ARBIEEBEREMENAEE
NEERNRER L AFELZEREH
B - B ERE R B
DEAMZE  NERZEFLEF
RIREA BRI o )6 5 IA %
ERBARAFEANKEENSE
B o SN - ARR BB EBIHBEER
FREBRMAERERMN - EmkEM
HBEARBES

WA RE R

AEBE 2 TEXEBERE B RERM T
B - AEEZEEBRKAREEBZ

WA o

FRDHRAREAKREEBEH 2T

principal activities recognised during the year is as Bz AmT :
follows:

2015 2014
—ZE—hfF —ET—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T T
Sales of gold and jewellery products ESUBEMEE 34,700 69,435
Franchise income FEEF N A 540 718
Enterprise software products DESEHER 74,203 129,538
Systems integration REEK 13,633 259,211
Professional services HERE 51,665 40,473
Total revenue #U A 174,741 499,375
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, have identified the Group’s two products

7 EE
BH 2237 — Fmil - HITESRR
ITELEREE) ERHAEEREER

and service lines as operating segments as further

described in note 2.23.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results.

K BR# KB RIS

=4

M=

AN
m|

iy
LEDER o

AERED IR BERAED
ﬁﬁ o

B R AEH SRR TE

2015
“Z-If
Jewellery IT Products
Products and Services Total
Bl
KEER ERRRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Revenue WA
- From external customers - RENIRP 35,240 139,501 174,741
Reportable segment revenue TERAHUA 35,240 139,501 174,741
Reportable segment loss before income tax NBRAEHAT 2RI DEE (12,269) (20,722) (32,991)
Interest income 7l 84 21 1,163 1,184
Depreciation ik (1,583) (2,092) (3,675)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HENE - BE k&2 ZNE - 2 2
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BORBEABRRCREE
through profit or loss LA BEkE - 1,471 1,477
Finance costs HBER - (368) (368)
Written down of inventorigs BE 7 (647) - (647)
Share of result of an associate El—HEHMENREE - (1,490) (1,490)
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE 292,045 128,932 420,977
Additions to non-current segment assets FRAENDIERDEE
(other than financial instruments and (EBTARELHE
deferred tax assets) during the year BERIMN) 7 812 889
Reportable segment liabilities TE2RIDERE 18,267 278,653 296,920
—E-RFER
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER®)
2014
“T-mE
Jewellery T Products
Products and Services Total
BRI
FEEM Em kRS ELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Revenue WA
- From external customers -RENNDEE 70,153 429,222 499,375
Reportable segment revenue TERAHUA 70,153 429,222 499,375
Reportable segment loss before income tax NBFEHAT2H7HEE (14,079) (12,532) (26,611)
Interest income pilloNeay 19 1,459 1,478
Depreciation and amortisation of non-financial assets 34 BAE 7 17TE LK # (1,534) (3,242) 4,776)
Net loss on disposalfwritten off of property, HE /Mg  BERR
plant and equipment LEER (2,768) - 2,768)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BORBEABRR EREE
through profit or loss AR BERE - 260 260
Reversal of provision for impairment R HEFAERE RE
of trade receivables - 4 4
Finance costs HBER - (377) (377)
Reportable segment assets 2RI PEE 305,019 194,809 499,828
Additions to non-current segment assets ENFENDERDEE
(other than financial instruments and (EBIERERHE
deferred tax assets) during the year BERI) 1,301 1,917 3218
Reportable segment liabilities E2RIDEE 16,377 320,659 336,036
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as
presented in the financial statements are as follows:

DEER #)

AEBZRENH RS 2 RBEPTE]MEK
PR2d| 2 ASEERT BB HERMT

2015 2014

—®-5nF —T-OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Reportable segment assets AIE2|MHHEE 420,977 499,828
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 88 5> BB UG IR (224,954) (224,954)
Group assets rEBMZEE 196,023 274,874
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2HmaEaE 296,920 336,036
Elimination of inter-segment payables 5 B RIE (224,954) (224,954)
Group liabilities rEBZEE 71,966 111,082

The Group's revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

Place of domicile of customer/location of assets

AEEZREINBEFPBAREIFREDE
E(ERTAMELEHRBEERIN RT
5 &7

EFTRAEY EEMEL

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

RENMBEEZWA FREBEE
2014 2015 2014
—E-FHF —TNF ZEB-HFE —FTNF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FH T FET
Hong Kong BB 120,230 40,075 812
PRC and Taiwan R A E 368,124 6,523 9,911
South East Asia LR 11,021 15 72
499,375 46,613 10,795

During 2015, none of the Group’s customers contributed
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.

During 2014, HK$221,099,000 or 44.28% of the Group's
revenue depended on a single customer in the PRC and
Taiwan segment. At 31 December 2014, 16.97% of the
Group’s trade receivables was due from this customer.

“E-RFER
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RIZE—R1F  AEEBMERFHEALEE
B ARIT0%EA F o

R —NmWFE REBRAFZ
221,099,000 7T 3, 44.28% J5 & 48 1 B %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nV_\éE\zri%ﬁiEM{t%I
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OTHER INCOME 7. Hftlzs
2015 2014
—s-HE —Z-puF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Other revenue Hib A
Interest income A2z 1,184 1,478
Dividend income from listed equity securities AR ZE 5 2 IR Bz 507 1,332
Consultancy and management fee income  EERI REIBE U 1,968 3,113
Others Hi 215 240
3,874 6,163
Other net income Hib Wz H5E
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair BARBEFABRRZ
value through profit or loss TREE AR EEKS 1,477 260
Net gain on disposal of property, HEWHE - BEREKEZ
plant and equipment FUg 2 -
Reversal of provision for impairment FEUNE 2R FURE R
of trade receivables i iE! = 4
1,479 264
5,353 6,427
FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEHR
2015 2014
—B-AF —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest charges on: FEXH -
Other interest expense, wholly HEaF B H -
repayable within five years AREFAZHER 368 377
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. HIRFIEBIAEE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ MR AR ATER SR, (GTA):
(crediting):
2015 2014
—E—AF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Cost of inventories sold FEHEKRAK 46,097 310,577
Cost of services rendered* Rt AR A% A A * 104,021 142,155
Depreciation e 3,675 3,966
Amortisation of development cost BB AR AN 7 8 - 810
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAIN S 987 1,173
Written down of inventories FE 2 MRk 647 -
Net (gain)/loss on disposal/written off of HEMEmE  BMER
property, plant and equipment B2 F (W) BB (2) 2,768
Fair value gain on financial assets BAREEFABRE SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEZAAEEKE (1,477) (260)
Reversal of provision for impairment EIE SRFUREREZ
of trade receivables - - (4)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) H&E—RIHBAF Y EIE
(P47%35) 258 -
Net exchange loss b 5 &5 18 362 564
Operating lease charges on land BT REF L
and buildings MEX W 7,786 10,719
* Cost of services rendered includes HK$84,783,000 (2014:  * IR AR TS A A B 3E B TRk 484,783,000/8 7L.( =
HK$120,443,000) relating to staff costs, which amount is T — U4 : 120,443,000 7T) * xS BEIEA
also included in the total amounts disclosed in note 12. Mz 122 BN -
T—HFFR
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREHBEX
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for the year AR AEBETRARRE AW ELETER
as the companies within the Group had no estimated BOHEA - MW EBAREEAIZERBMNER
assessable profit in Hong Kong (2014: HK$Nil). Pursuant ZE—MOF  TEL) c REFBEAB
to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, the BB D - REFETRERK S QT
companies comprising the Group in the PRC are liable to REBEEZE_ZE—AFA_ZT—NUF+_A=
PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% during the +—HIFFEEBIRTR25% 84 h Bl 5
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. Taxation on PTG o BHNE M BLIE TR IR 5 A 5t
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated ERB R A AR EBELEFNRRANIR
assessable profits for the year at the rates prevailing in TREFE -
the countries in which the Group operates.
2015 2014
—E—AHF —ET—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Current tax RNVEAR I8
— Overseas — N
Current year AFEE 420 559
Deferred tax EREFIE
Current year (note 29) EE (F5E29) 1,146 -
Total income tax expense FriSBip 458 1,566 559
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss AR RGBS RS EIEETYE
at applicable tax rates: iR -
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Loss before income tax RS AIEE (32,991) (26,611)
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate REBMNEHBTE16.5%
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—HF :16.5%)
AEZHA (5,444) (4,391)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBBAZBIATE (459) (230)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TRARAS 2 BT E 2,663 2,865
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences RERERZRE 2 HIETE 481 121
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AEARBEBZHIETE 5,538 3,118
Derecognition of deferred tax assets EERIEEELR EHER 1,146 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {£fsCaIAERATIBEIE (435) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBZEREE B
operating in other jurisdictions ANEIRNC Rl -7 (1,924) (901)
Others Hit = (23)
Income tax expense FTiSTif 1,566 559

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

96




BERGKHEEZERERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$28,467,000 (2014: HK$27,019,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 1,188,460,000 (2014: 1,188,460,000) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 equate the basic loss per share as there
is no potential dilutive ordinary share in existence during
the year.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(including directors’ emoluments)

11.

12.

BREBE
BREAREEBBNDIEARRES
AJE(HE51828,467,0008 T (ZZ—
% :27,019,000/% ) & #%J1,188,460,000
f% (ZZ—Pg4F :1,188,460,0000%) ERE
BT B 2 IR EGTE -

HRBE-_T—AFKk_F-HNF+_A 3\
St ALFERYEEERBE LR
- MERBEEEASRERELRE

18 -

EERINFAX(BRESHM)

2015 2014

—B-F4 —T—eE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T T

Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE  #HehEMmER 99,995 142,970
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B{R&RA—E 2B FETE 11,461 13,840 \

111,456 156,810

T -RFEFIR
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EE - T ETHAERERE

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S I8 A B &

EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ and chief executive’s 13.1 EERTETHAESEMH
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments, BERTBITHRABFHIIRIEE
disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, ¥REMMRA - BEBERTEME
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies 383 (MIERABI(HEEENDE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure RRBIE 2 HEEAT

of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Contributions
Salaries  to defined

Directors’ and contribution
Fees allowances plan Total

fid i
ESHe HeRER HE 5 aE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
st TEx TER TER TER

2015 —E-1F
Executive directors: HTES:
Ms. Li Xia EX (a) - 600 18 618
Mr. Lin Di ks (b) - 400 15 415
Mr. Chen Yin BEEE - 456 18 474
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES :
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MERELE - 180 - 180
Ms. Lu Haina EEHrt - 120 - 120
Ms. Na Xin il - 120 = 120
- 1,876 51 1,927
2014 “E-E
Executive directors: HiTESE!
Ms. Li Xia PERT - 580 24 604
Mr. Lin Di waLE (b) - 440 10 450
Mr. Chen Yin RELE - 420 23 443
Mr. Yip Tin Hung EXEEE (c) - 100 - 100
Independent non-executive directors: By ¥ TEE
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MRBESE - 180 - 180
Ms. Lu Haina Esfat - 120 - 120
Mr. Fu Ping Man ERLE (d) - 100 - 100
Ms. Na Xin il e (e - 20 - 20
- 1,960 57 2,017
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.1 Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Ms. Li Xia was appointed as the chief executive
of the Company on 30 March 2015 and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by her as the chief executive.

Mr. Lin Di was also the chief executive of the
Company from 1 January 2014 to 30 March 2015
and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive. He resigned as the chief executive
on 30 March 2015 and resigned as an executive
director on 30 October 2015.

Mr. Yip Tin Hung resigned as an executive

director on 18 August 2014.

Mr. Fu Ping Man resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 1 December 2014.

Ms. Na Xin was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 1 December 2014.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2014: HK$Nil).

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2014: HK$Nil).

T -RFEFHR
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included two
(2014: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2014:
five) individuals during the year are as follows:

13. E5  TEZTBAERERE

BAEHM =)

13.2 ABEBREHFMAL

FA - AEERERSFHALE
EME(—T—NOF: TR)EF -
HEFMC A LA DT RER - £/
BB T=%2(ZT—NF: AF)
REFMALTZHMOT

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Salaries and allowances and e EMEREDA G
benefit-in-kind 1,915 7,033
Contributions to defined TEREEFRET B R
contribution plan 23 84
1,938 7,117
The emoluments fell within the following bands: RN AT & E -

Number of individuals

ETAY

2015 2014
—F-1F L

Emolument band s E
HK$Nil to HK$500,000 T L 2500,0007 T 1 -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001,857 7C21,000,000/8 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T - 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C22,500,000/8 7T = 1
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. ¥ - BERRE

EQUIPMENT
Computer Furniture
Leasehold and office and Motor
improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
EER
RENERS BLERE FRREE RE EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn Tén TR TR
At 1 January 2014 R=%-DF-R-A
Cost A 7570 30959 6427 1,351 46,307
Accumulated depreciation and ZHIER
impairment losses HEEE (4,562) (24,733) 1814 (745) (31,854)
Net book amount REFE 3,008 6,226 4613 606 14,453
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-E-BET-A=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FIEEFE 3,008 6,226 4613 606 14,453
Exchange differences EAEE (26) (31) (66) [5) (127)
Additions HE - 1974 1,244 - 3218
Disposalsfwritten off HE /3 (2,768) (15) - = (2,783)
Depreciation i (93) 2,552) (1,130) (191) (3,966)
Closing net book amount ERBERE 122 5,602 4,661 410 10,79
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-BE+ZB=1-AR
1 January 2015 “E-15-f-H
Cost g 4,405 32,390 7589 1,344 45,728
Accumulated depreciation and ZHIER
impairment losses HEBE (4,283) (26,788) (2,928) (934) (34,933)
Net book amount REARE 122 5,602 4,661 410 10,795
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E-RE+-A-t-RLEE
Opening net book amount EYRERE 122 5,602 4,661 410 10,795
Exchange differences ERZE (7) (189) (215) (15) (426)
Additions HE - 359 75 455 889
Disposals/written off e /3t - (2) 3) = (5)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE-RHBAR(H3E35) - (606) (1) (409) (1,016)
Depreciation bk (88) 2,209) (1,167) (211) 3,675)
Closing net book amount ERRAFE 21 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
At 31 December 2015 R-E-TE+-A=1-R
Cost R 2,846 21,238 6,465 766 31,315
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMER
impairment losses HEEE (2,819) (24,283) (3,115) (536) (30,753)
Net book amount BEFE 21 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
—E-RFFHR
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2015 are as follows:

15. RHIB AR 2

= N 2

=

RZZE-—RF+-A=+—H  F2WE
RAZFHBWT ¢

Particulars of

Percentage of
issued and
paid up capital/

Place of issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ Place of paid up capital/ held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operations registered capital Company  Principal activities
KARRECRT
BRORBERE/ RERRE/
WEAR AR i R BB dMEAE  AMEAZEAL  TEXE
Excel (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 5,000 shares of 100%*  Investment holding
US$1 each
AERLES" B 5,000/ B E(E RERR
(EP4 O
Excel China Investment British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 5,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited US$1 each
SENEREERAT ERRAEHE" &k 5,000 Bk EE REER
1ET 2B
Excel Consulting and Malaysia* Malaysia 100,000 shares of 100%  Development of
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian Ringgit computer software
("MYR") 1 each and provision of
sale and marketing
Services
SRAER* SRAD 100,000 BREE FEERTAR
SRATE(5E)) REHER
172K st AR
Excel Global IT Services British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 500,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited US$1 each
ERRAEE” Bk 500,000 BEEE REHR
[EP4 )
Excel Global IT Services Hong Kong* Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100%  Provision of
(HK) Limited professional
services
TR (BB ERAT N B 10,0008 17 RUERRE
Excel Investment China Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%  Investment holding
FRRENEAR AR B Bl 1,0008% & 17 REHER
Excel International Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% Inactive
e &k 10,000 13 gmex
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

15. RItB AT 2= &)

Percentage of

issued and
Particulars of ~ paid up capital/
Place of issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ Place of paid up capital/ held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operations registered capital Company  Principal activities
BEfT ALARBERER
RERKRE/ RERKRE/
WEAR AR RV AL EXBE dfEsEE  DREAZEAL  TEXE
Excel SSL Investment Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%  Investment holding
TRDBLHRERRAR K B 1,000 17 RERR
Excel System Limited British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 100 shares of 65%  Inactive
US$1 each
EERAES* B 100(REREE TEex
(EP4 )
Excel Technology International British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited US$1
RERNES &R 1REE RERR
(EPA )
Excelink Development Corporation  British Virgin Islands* ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
TRERERAA ERRAHE" &k 10,000 BRE(E RERRK
[EP4 )
Excelink Technology Pte Ltd. Singapore* Singapore Singapore Dollar 100%  Development
("S$") 893,022 of computer
software and
provision of sale
and marketing
Services
A GiIb AT FEEREAML Rt
(I )893,0227 HE RS HER
Hong Kong Jewellery Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1 share 100%  Investment holding
ERREARAT i B 1A 1D RERR
—E-RFFHR
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15.
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15. RIfB AT 2= &)

Percentage of

issued and
Particulars of ~paid up capital/
Place of issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ Place of paid up capital/ held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operations registered capital Company  Principal activities
BEAR  ARRARECEST
BRRE/ RERKRE/
WEARER BV EXBE dfEsEE  DREAZENL  TEXE
HR21 Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 50,000 shares of 93%  Investment holding
US$1 each
ERRAHE" i 50,000f B EE REBR
(B34
HR21 Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 2 shares 93%  Development
of computer
software and
provision of
maintenance
Services
A &R 2R fxt3 REERBER
RERERS
i21 Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 14,000 shares 80.1%  Inactive
BN &k 14,0008 (3 TEex
Infostar Ltd. British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of 100%  Investment holding
US$1
ERRAEE" B (G RARR
(Epd )
World Sky International Limited British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of 100%*  Investment holding
US$1
ERERERAT AERAEE" B 1REE RERR
(ESwd )
Wise Success Ltd. British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 5,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
AERLES &R 5,000/ SR E(E RERR
(EP4 (i
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

15. RHIB AR 2

Percentage of

= N 2

R E)

issued and
Particulars of ~ paid up capital/
Place of issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ Place of paid up capital/ held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operations registered capital Company  Principal activities
BRT ALAFABECET
RERRA/ RAZRE/
WEARER RV AL EEBE EMERFE ARMEFZESNL TEEHR
FREBAENZERAT PRC*** PRC US$2,200,000 65%  Systems
integration,
development of
computer software
and provision of
maintenance
services
T el 2,200,000% 7 ZOEN - AEER
B RRERERE
SEAGE(RIERAR PRC** PRC HK$87,000,000 100%  Design and sales
of gold and
jewellery products
g i 87,000,000 RARHEREHE
Em
FIEEMEAEUZAAR AR PRCH** PRC Renminbi (“RMB") 66%  Development of
6,000,000 computer software
and provision of
maintenance
services
g e AEB(TARE]) REERBMER
6,000,0007C RERERS
FEIE(RINBRAR PRC** PRC HK$3,000,000 100%  Development of
computer software
and provision of
maintenance
services
T i 3,000,000 7 RESREHR
RERE R
TRABTHRE(LB)ERAT  PRCH PRC US$1,025,000 100%  Provision of
professional
services and
systems integration
g+ i 1,025,000% 7T REUZXRBR
ZREN
—E-hFFR
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

15. RHIB AR 2= (#)

Percentage of

issued and
Particulars of ~paid up capital/
Place of issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ Place of paid up capital/ held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRT ALAFABECET
RERRE/ RAZRE/
WEARZR BV EEBE EMERFE ARmEACEAL FEER
TEAERE (M) BRAR PRC** PRC US$70,000 100%  Provision of
professional services
g G 70,000% 7T REZZRY
BN ERNER AT Taiwan* Taiwan New Taiwan Dollar 100%  Provision of
("NT$") 11,913,620 professional services
B4 | 11,913,62057 &% RIUZRRG
(IFe%])
FEEERRS BRI AL PRC** PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Development of
BRAR computer software
and provision of
maintenance
services
g t ARH10,000,0007 FEEREML R
RERS
& Issued capital held directly by the Company # NARIHERE S ERITIRA
* Limited liability company * BE AT
b * Wholly-owned foreign enterprise * % I NEEENE
i Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise * %% FhINE BRI

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in a list of excessive length.
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to
i21 Limited, HR21 Limited and Jt REBEERZ AR A A,
the subsidiaries of the Group, which have material non-
controlling interests (“NCI"”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

15. RHIB AR 2= #)

TR AEEFKE R AI21 Limited »
HR21 Limited Rt REBEEREBR A
RIZEBER - ZEAREEEAIEER
([ FEERER ) - TRATHMEER
BMENRETAGIMEEE 2S5 -

2015 2014
—2-1f —E2-MmE
ERE% EREE
i21 HR21  HERK i21 HR21 R
Limited  Limited HBRAT Limited Limited ~ BRAR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FET TR BT THTT TBT
NCI percentage HERERE DL 19.9% 7% 35% 19.9% 7% 35%
Current assets nHEE 819 15925 35,646 816 13,377 65,592
Non-current assets FnPEE - 44 1,641 - 75 4,352
Current liabilities REaE (42,985)  (16,617)  (33316)  (42.972)  (14,688)  (47,927)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8f8)/AEFE (42,166) (648) 3971 (421%6)  (1,236) 22,017
Carrying amount of NCI R REE (2,147) 409 1,391 (2,145) 368 7,707
Revenue U - 6,898 25,208 = 5703 277495
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(BR)/ B (10) 588 (18,046) (8 (1,051) 91
Total comprehensive (expenselfincome  2E(E%),/ WA LE (10) 588 (18,046) 8) (1,051) 91
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NC| AEEFERER
Z(E8)/ &7 (2) 4 (6,316) 2) (73) 32
Dividend paid to NCI O ERRESRE = = - - - -
Cash flows from/(used in) BeTHmEL/(BR)
operating activities 2BenE 2 21 2,202 3 (584) 53,376
Cash flows used in investing activites ~ H&EHFBBzELRE - (9) - = = =
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ BAEBMER HERE - - - - - (62,324
—E-RFER
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16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

16. R—REBE QAT 2B

2015

—E-RF

HK$'000

THEIL

Deemed cost (note 35) BAERA (H75235) 5,131
Share of post-acquisition losses and other [EEW R  BEREMEE

comprehensive expense X (1,490)

Share of net assets EHEESE 3,641

Amount due from an associate JEU— B = A R RIA 36,410

40,051

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and is not repayable within one year.

Particulars of the Group’'s unlisted associate at 31
December 2015 are as follows:

Percentage of nominal
value of issued ordinary
share capital held

Country/place of
incorporation and

FEME 2 ARFAREEN - T5tE B
—FRBAER -

AEER _ZE—RAF+-_A=1T—HZ3¥*
IR AR ZFHBIT

Name of associate operations indirectly by the Company Principal activities
KL R APRMEREERT

BENRER gEER /0% ERRAEEZADL FTEXH

2015

—Z-1F
Excel Technology International Hong Kong 50% Development of computer software,

(Hong Kong) Limited systems integration and the provision
of maintenance services

HREEER (BB BRAA 07 50% R NS A E

Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited (“Excel
HK") is a strategic partner for the Group's growth in the
development of computer software and the provision of
systems integration, professional services and maintenance
services through its expertise. Excel HK was a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group’s subsidiary prior to
completion of the subscription on 27 May 2015 which
resulted in the Group's shareholding in Excel HK reduced
to 50% and the Group ceased its control over Excel HK.
As such, Excel HK became an associate of the Group
and is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements with effect from 27
May 2015. Details of the deemed disposal of the Group's
interest in Excel HK are set out in note 35.
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 16.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s
associate, Excel HK, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

R—EBENT 2 ER @)

AEEBERREREEZUBENRE
(U EFHRR 2 A ZRERFE) R E
RAMBERREREEZ HRREENT:

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
FHIT

Non-current assets IERBEE
Current assets mBEE
Current liabilities mEaE

Net assets BEFE

1,254
74,272
(68,244)

7,282

Period from

27 May 2015 (date of
reclassification as

an associate) to

31 December 2015
—E-RAERA=++H
(EFoBEABE AR ZA)
B-E-EHF
+ZA=+—HLLH™
HK$’'000

T

Revenue Wiz
Loss and total comprehensive expense EBEEEEFRS AR

T -RFEFHR
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16.

17.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continuved) 16. R—REBE AT 2 #*%8)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it BB R ENR A M SRR ER
information to the carrying amount of the interests ZRERESEAERE Y -
in Excel HK recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2015
—E-IF
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of Excel HK TREBEEFE 7,282
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Excel HK REBREBRB B BEEER
ZEDHK 50%
The Group's ownership interest in Excel HK REBRERB BB EER 3,641
Amount due from Excel HK RUGEBE B RIE 36,410
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Excel HK AEERERE R REE 40,051
The details of the financial guarantee given by the Group REBMEBEBRUENOYBERTEBER
to Excel HK are disclosed in note 36. MIFE361KEE ©
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. THEHESTREE
ASSETS
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Unlisted private equity fund FELFMAUABRERES
Fair value NAEE 2,543 2,543
Less: provision for impairment R RE R (2,543) (2,543)
Unlisted equity investments JEETRR AR E
Cost D@ 3,900 3,900
Less: provision for impairment o ORERE (3,900) (3,900)
Total available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEERT - -
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18.

19.

GOODWILL 18. BE
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as BEEmEFEZOFWOT :
follows:
2015 2014
—E—HF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
At the beginning and the end of year REY M FR
Gross carrying amount IR E 15,853 15,853
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (15,853) (15,853)
DEVELOPMENT COSTS 19. BHRARA
2015 2014
—E—-HF —Z—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
At 1 January R—A—H
Cost AR 37,376 37,376
Accumulated amortisation ZatE Y (37,376) (36,566)
Net book amount REFE - 810
Year ended 31 December BE+t=-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE = 810
Amortisation charge #HiHER = (810)
Written off b= - -
Closing net book amount FAREEFE - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H
Cost D@ 7,052 37,376
Accumulated amortisation ZatE Y (7,052) (37,376)
Net book amount REFE - =

The development costs represented all direct costs
incurred in the development of enterprise software
products. The amortisation charge for the year ended
31 December 2014 was included in “depreciation and
amortisation” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.
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20. INVENTORIES 20. #&
2015 2014
—2-FEF -—T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Jewellery Products KEEM
Raw materials vRE 999 1,664
Work in progress TERE 35 533
Finished goods BT 42,872 26,049
43,906 28,246
IT Products and Services ERREERRER
Finished goods 2IRK T = 89
Total et 43,906 28,335
Written down of inventories amounted to HK$647,000 BE-_EZ—hE+-_A=+—HIEE -
(2014: HK$Nil) was provided for the year ended 31 FE 2R A647,0008 T( ZZF—MM4F :
December 2015. THEIT) ©
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 21. BY (B EEFEHNIER
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT b=}
WORK
Amounts due from customers for contract work EREFAEOIERERCETIRER
represent the excess of the value of work performed BREMEBEFPEH VRESRE L ER o
over the amount of billing issued to customers.
Amounts due to customers for contract work represents ENEPEAIRREBERESESNE
the excess of billing over the value of work performed ETIREMR  RE/REBERBIIERE
and the amounts received from customers before the FZaBEIER -

related services have been rendered.
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ANMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)

21. B (B EFEHNIRER

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 5 (#)
WORK (continued)
2015 2014
—EZ-hfF ZT—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Contracts in progress at the end of the RERBRZETHEN
reporting period:
Estimated contract costs plus recognised [HEHA IR AINE BEZRE TR
profits less recognised losses BEREE 79,099 168,717
Less: progress billings B EERESE (56,534) (134,442)
22,565 34,275
Analysed for reporting purposes as: R4
Amounts due from customers for contract work [ENEFE AL TIEHE 25,842 44,440
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFAHIRRAE (3,277) (10,165)
22,565 34,275
All the amounts included in amounts due are expected SPAEYW EMZETAESRE  EHER

to be billed and recovered/(credited) to the profit or loss
within one year.

—FRBHRERKR, (GEA)BEER -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWEZER
2015 2014
—2-hF —T-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THAT

Trade receivables e E 5 IR

From third parties E=ZH 23,441 47,171
From a related party — B 425 2,610
23,866 49,781
Less: provision for impairment of receivables W EBGRIRR (B R (180) (187)
23,686 49,594
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables from third parties for IT products and
services are due within 14 days to 60 days from the date
of billing. Trade receivable from a related party is non-
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.
Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted.

The Group’'s sales of gold and jewellery products
comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees are due
within 0 — 60 days from the date of billing. The directors
of the Group considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods at their inception. All trade receivables are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue
recognition if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of provision of impairment, was as
follows:

2. EWEZRA &)

BAMSRERERBZEBRE=ZTT 28
FEFARBEBEF THAERTER
AU — BB CESERRSR
B EBEMRBEREREER - AHBER
NTEZREEZERAEHREEEESR
MREEEHRRTAIBRLE—FEE -

AEB B HREERHETERRERAT
EXPZRASHERERRHEE - ARF
RrBEmzEEHE  FEHNBHEA
EEEXNTERIY - AEBEER LA
EFRRDERRR - MEKRE SRR
NABEEEFRTEYESAEZR - A
RN E 5 IR FE RIS I — A -

REZEZABORKARER B HB(HER
2)) RRESER(EHRRERE) 2
RREDITANT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T T

0 - 30 days 0-30H 16,570 35,130
31 — 60 days 31 -60H 3,860 7,983
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 1,910 564
Over 90 days H3E90H 1,346 5,917
23,686 49,594

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. The amount of impairment
loss of impaired receivables, if any, is recognised based
on the credit history of the customer, whether the
customer is experiencing financial difficulties and was in
default or delinquency of payments, and current market
conditions.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EREZRM @)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade FEWE SRR ER G 2 BN -
receivables is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-hF —EF—-NF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Balance at the beginning of the year REFEY) 2 458 187 191
Reversal of provision for impairment losses Ji{{& & 18 & & ~ #[E] - (4)
Exchange differences PE =R (7) =
Balance at the end of the year RFR 2 6458 180 187
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables HEER  AEBEWEZE ZEZZERD
based on due date is as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-HEF —F—NF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TE T FHAT
Neither past due nor impaired R R TR R (B 16,683 35,664
1 — 90 days past due #HA1 - 90H 6,285 8,509
Over 90 days past due B HERIA90 A 718 5,521
23,686 49,594

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired related to a large number
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based
on past credit history, management believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in
respect of trade receivables past due but not impaired.

gl
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OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

3. HtEWRE - RERFENAR

AND PREPAYMENTS 15
2015 2014
—E—8F —E—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables Hh U RIAE 5,969 2,894
Deposits " 722 2,108
Amount due from an investee company e = NCIE | 10,073 9,687
Prepayments TR IR 5,649 11,897
22,413 26,586

The amount due from an investee company of HK$7,705,000
(2014: HK$8,159,000), which is unsecured, interest
bearing at 12% per annum and, repayable within 1 year
from the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group accrued interest
income of HK$2,368,000 (2014: HK$1,528,000) for the
amount due from an investee company.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of other receivables, deposits and amount due from an
investee company are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group has not
determined any other receivables as individually impaired
and no specific allowance for doubtful debts was
recognised.
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24. A BE A AEEZR2SR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2015 2014
—B-AF —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
Listed equity securities at fair value held for trading:  RARL BEBEES 2 FTRAES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LT 2 RAES - 26,945
The Group's investments in listed equity securities as REBR-_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H&EB
at 31 December 2014 had been disposed of through RIELEBAEEREBRELE 2 =
deemed disposal of the Group’s interest in Excel HK € HEB2HME35  AEER T —
as detailed in note 35. The fair value of the Group's NEF+—A=+—HRETMBRAEAZBHFZH
investments in listed equity securities as at 31 December B AREBEECSZER T —NFE+=
2014 has been determined by reference to their quoted A=Z+—BZHRE(BE—EBRETE °
bid prices (Level 1) as at 31 December 2014.
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERREEEY
2015 2014
—EB-hF —T-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Bank balances and cash WITEREA® 33,563 86,872
Included in bank balances and cash of the Group is REBZRTTEZLESE4517,014,000
HK$17,014,000 (2014: HK$33,321,000) of bank balances BIT(ZZ— Y4 : 33,321,000 7T) 57F
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC and MR BEERBRITUARKE IR
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately ERNEL0.60% (ZFE—PUE : 0.39%)EF
0.60% (2014: 0.39%) per annum. RMB is not a freely BZHR1TET -  AREATITERLBRE
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign B o ARYE A B N 2 YNE KB BRI K2
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of EDE - EPENRMNERDETE @ AEFEDE
Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange EHERER N EITINE H BEL ZRITE
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB ABRHEH Ha BN o
for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
Included in bank balances and cash of the Group is REFZRTEREIRS®E1,543,000/
HK$1,543,000 (2014: HK$2,284,000) of bank balances TT(ZZE—PY4E : 2,284,000 7T) BEHR
denominated in MYR placed with banks in Malaysia and ERFRIERNEITUEKEE - IHERE
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately FIZE#40.07% (—E—PU4E : 1.59% )it B
0.07% (2014: 1.59%) per annum. In Malaysia, the Group ZRITER c AEBEANERIAILIER
is permitted to exchange MYR into foreign currencies. 18 BS WK 15 i B ANEE o
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERREEEWH)
(Continued)
The directors of the Group considered that the fair value AEFEERARBRITERZAABE
of the short term bank deposits is not materially different HHEmMETESESAEZE  RRENRES
from their carrying amount because of the short maturity Bt REET R EA B kT o
period at their inception.
TRADE PAYABLES 26. ENEZERX
The Group was granted by its third parties suppliers EoHHERATAER 2 EEHNF=
credit periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Based +HZEXS1TH - REZZEHE - BEHNES
on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade R ZBREE DT ¢
payables were as follows:
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
0 - 30 days 0-30H 11,815 1,381
31 — 60 days 31 -60H - 200
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H = -
Over 90 days B0 H 12,589 30,955
24,404 32,536
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values FEEBEBRANYE  RAENESRK
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable RZEHEAEAREBECEENE -
approximation of its fair value.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 27. HttENREREARER

CHARGES

2015 2014

—E-hF —TF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Deferred income for maintenance services {7 RS2 IR A 10,405 21,039
Deposits from customers and franchisees RERFEMIEHFNEREZIZS 2,343 5,348
Other payables Hih e RIE 3,563 7,728
Accrued charges BIRERA 13,574 24,002
29,885 58,117

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to
be a reasonable approximation of its fair value.
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28.

29.

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

BORROWINGS 28. f8E&
2015 2014
—ZE—AF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Other borrowings from a third party KE—ZBE=ZANEMES 4,098 3,964

The loans borrowed from a third party is unsecured,
interest bearing at 12% (2014: 12%) per annum and
repayable within 1 year from the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amounts of the amounts due
approximate their fair values.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) for Hong Kong entities and 25%
(2014: 25%) on the PRC entities in the Group at the end
of the reporting period.

29.

RE—BE-HAZERBERR - ZFF
E12% (ZZF—UF : 12%)itEREER
WMHAKRBI —FANEE - ZRERBEZERE
BEAAREEES °

EER IR

BERBIITRERPABEEEEIRAE
ErEBERTEERDBIRGR Z5IE
FTEREI16.5% (ZZT—F :16.5%) %
25%(=Z—P4F : 25%):1E -

The movement during the year in the deferred tax assets FARGEVBRARER CELERIEE

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EZHHmT
position is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-EfF —T-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 January ®—H—A (1,307) (1,317)

Exchange differences &N =58 67 10

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) & — P B A R (B 3E35) 94 -

Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) EREmFZNER(FIEE10) 1,146 =

At 31 December ®w+=-—A=+—H - (1,307)

—E-RFER
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

—F-AFf_A=1—HIFE

29. EERIE &)

FA - BEHRBEEMBE(ER-HE
ALARER NI SRR ) < BEIT

EEHREE

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IEERFBIETE
HK$'000
F#ET
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—mFE—-—H—H 83
Recognised in profit or loss PRERRAER (9)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-ZE—NE+— E-I——EI
rE=ZF—HF—HA—H 74
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHWBAF (74)
At 31 December 2015 » AFE+=A=+—H =
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Tax losses Provisions Total
BiEEE BiE FLE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
F#& T F#&T T
At 1 January 2014 R_E—WMFE—-H—H (177) (1,223) (1,400)
Exchange differences &N =58 - 10 10
Recognised in profit or loss ERBERKRNER 9 - 9
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2015 rZF—RF—H—H (168) (1,213) (1,381)
Exchange differences PE 5 =5 - 67 67
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 168 = 168
Recognised in profit or loss ERBm R NER - 1,146 1,146

At 31 December 2015

R-B-HEF+-A=1t—8H =
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DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 29. EZEBIE (&)
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of BB RARME @ BETERERIEE
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and ENBBECREEASTMASHMER
liabilities have been offset in accordance with HKAS EBGHERE125EH T UK - &
12 Income Taxes issued by the HKICPA. The amounts FEMBIARERZ SN ¢
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:
2015 2014
—®-HEF _"F-QmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T T
Deferred tax assets EERIEE B - (1,381)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE = 74
Net deferred tax assets recognised ERRNGEATBIMRREZ
in the consolidated statement EEFIAE BEF 58
of financial position - (1,307)

Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$1,899,000 (2014: HK$6,082,000). Deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

A
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30.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 29.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$87,397,000 (2014: HK$72,044,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses of approximately HK$Nil (2014:
HK$1,018,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining losses
of approximately HK$87,397,000 (2014: HK$71,026,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

These tax losses do not expire under current legislation
except losses of approximately HK$40,736,000 (2014:
HK$23,885,000) which will expire as follows:

EERIE =)
AEACEEHBEE

R-ZE—RFE+=-A=+—H8 KEBH
KRB IBEE184987,397,000/8 0( =& —
PU4F : 72,044,000 7T, ) 88 2 4 61 5K 2R g
REBEWA - ERZEEHEBPNRIEEED
BT (ZZ— U4 : 1,018,000/ 7T ) FER
BEERIBEE » AREARETEARIEFIK
R B E R R E 18 4987,397,0007
T(—Z P4 : 71,026,000/ 7T ) #ERIE
EFRBEAE °

WERBEERBERSZZLERER -
ME 8918 #940,736,00008 T ( — & — PO 4F -
23,885,000/ 7T ) #5 1R & T %I HAR W :

2015 2014
—E-hfF —EF-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Year of expiry: [EmEH

2015 —E—RF - 835
2016 —E—RF 2,349 2,487
2017 —E—+F 2,771 2,933
2018 —E—N\F 7,079 7,496
2019 —T-NF 6,798 10,134
2020 —EEEF 21,739 -
40,736 23,885

ANMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 30. ET‘T%% 15

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amounts due approximates its fair value.
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32.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF+-A=+—HIFFZ

SHARE CAPITAL 31. BRK
2015 2014
—g-5f —2-mE
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
REHEE TET RinEE THAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE VBT ERBR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—H&
+-A=t-H 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—B&
+-A=+-H 1,188,460,000 118,846  1,188,460,000 118,846

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

RESERVES

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between nominal value of the
shares issued by the Group and the amount
of the consideration. The application of
the share premium account is governed by
section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements that
have functional currency other than HKS$.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note
2.5.

T -RFEFHR
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32.

33.

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 — =

RESERVES (continued)

b) Distributability of reserve

The payment of future dividends will be
determined by the Group’s owners. The payment
of the dividends will depend upon the future
earnings, capital requirement, financial conditions
and general business conditions of the Group.

As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was no
reserve available for distribution to the owners of
the Group.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which
are payable by the Group are as follows:

—AFEfZA=1+—HIFEZE

32. F#EE)
(b) A DIREEE

ARBB 2N BAKERER AR
oo BEZXNHERNALER
‘BN -~ BAFK - BHIMRR K
BRI -

BE-T-AFR-T-ME+=
A=+—R8 - LETHHETFAE
EH A2 G -

33. KREHERE

REBPR - NREERBENATHH LS
HER L IEEMKEAEZZERS
R AT EIRE AT

2015 2014

—E—FHEF —=F—mn

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#& T FAET

Within one year —F R 5,028 8,829
In the second to fifth years FE_ZERF 2,155 12,972
7.183 21,801

The Group leases the land and buildings under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
three (2014: one to four) years, with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry dates
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
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34. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 34. BEFKRBEHE IR

TRANSACTIONS
34.1 Connected and related party transactions 31 BEFRBEIRES
In addition to the transactions/information BT R A R BN
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial WERS, /AR %@%E@J’J’
statements, during the year, the Group had the EEEELE&/_JZEE HTEITATE
following material transactions with connected AR5
and/or related parties:
2015 2014
—E-%f “T-NF
Connected and/or related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEARR/ABHS REMHE THAT FHLT
Companies in which directors of the
Company have interests
ARREFHARG L NA
- Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited* Sales of gold and jewellery products - 4,852
("Baidi Jewellery”) (notes a, e)
MNEEGEERAR ([ BRKE])(Mita - 6) HEBLKEER
- Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union Investment Company  Sales of gold and jewellery products 1,217 341
Limited* (“Zhong Chuang") (notes b, €)
AT R A REERAR ([RE]) (it - e) HERSUEER
- Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Packaging Company Limited* Purchase of packaging materials for the 282 699
(“Didi Packaging”) (notes a, €) brand H.K. JEWELRY
AEEEnaRaRAF(aak]) (s o) BEAARERN AR
- Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company Limited*  Purchase of showcases for the brand H.K. 326 844
("Didi Showcases") (notes a, ) JEWELRY
mMEaEERAERAR (NaERA]) (s - o) BEAAGERNZRE
- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Limited (“Shenzhen  Operating lease charges on land and 1,674 -
Yihua") (notes c, ) building
MTEEGZEHROBBRAARIEE]) (Hiic o) THRETHLHEER
Associate
k#/‘\j
- Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited Professional fee received 16,737 -
("Excel HK") (notes d, e}
TRRBER (B8) BRI ([F%E%]) (Hztd o) EREXER
Professional fee paid 4,331 -
EREXER
Purchase of complementary hardware and 1,905 -
software
BEREEMRAN
Administrative expenses reimbursements 350 -
(Net paid)

THAXREETFE)
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125




Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

34. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 34. BEFRBEBAIRSE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

34.1 Connected and related party transactions

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi
Showcases are owned as to 90%, 65% and 80%
respectively by Hangzhou Didi Investment Joint
Stock Company Limited* (fi/ld@RERNE
FRZ2®]), which in turn is owned as to 10% and
90% by Mr. Lin Di and his father, respectively.
Mr. Lin Di resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 30 October 2015.

Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the
brother of Ms. Li Xia (a director of the Company).

Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of
the Company holding approximately 26.30% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2015.

Excel HK has become on associate since 27
May 2015 and is ultimately 50% owned by Ms.
Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy, a director of the
Company's subsidiaries.

The above related party transactions also
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules are provided in the Directors’
Report.

Sales to or purchases from the connected and/
or related parties stated above were conducted
in the Group’s normal course of business and at
mutually agreed prices and terms.

The English names of the PRC companies are
translation of their respective Chinese names
included for information only and are not their
official names.
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34. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 34.
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34.1 Connected and related party transactions
(Continued)

In addition to the transactions/information
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group
had the following material outstanding balances
with connected and/or related parties.

BEIRBHAIRZ @)

341 BELSRBBAXRS(E)

BT ZEFRAVBRREMIHDAT
WERS /BRI FRALERE
RES &SRB 2 ERKEE
ERINT o

2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Companies controlled by FR 2 A R R P12 6 9
controlling shareholders ~A
Trade receivables FEUE B BRFK 425 2,610
34.2 Key management personnel remuneration 342 FEEBEAEMWSE

Key management personnel of the Group are
members of the board of directors, as well as
certain senior management personnel. Included

AEEBETEEEABRESTENE
RETEREEAR - BIKAR
RIEEEAEME EPHEBET

in staff costs are key management personnel SRS
remuneration which includes the following
expenses:
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHAT
Short-term employee benefits HE B A 3,791 6,610
Post-employment benefits BB 2R A 74 107
3,865 6,717
—E—RFFR
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LOSS OF CONTROL OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 27 May 2015, the Group, Excel HK, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company’s subsidiary and a company
wholly owned by Ms. Zee Chan Mei Chu Peggy, a
director of the Company’s subsidiary and a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level (the
“Subscriber”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Excel HK agreed to allot and issue
1,000 shares and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe the
shares at a price subsequently adjusted to HK$4,872,889
and was paid by the Subscriber in July 2015.

Upon completion of the subscription on 27 May 2015,
each of Excel BVI and the Subscriber owned 50% of the
issued share capital of Excel HK. The Group considered
that they did not have control over Excel HK after the
subscription. As such, the subscription resulted in Excel
HK ceasing to be a subsidiary of the Group. Excel HK
became an associate of the Group with effect from 27
May 2015 and have accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The fair
value of the equity interest retained by the Group on the
date when the control was lost is recognized as deemed
cost of acquisition of interest in an associate.
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35. LOSS OF CONTROL OF A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. XEH—ENEQE 2 EH#E

SUBSIDIARY (continued) (&)
HK$'000
FAET
Aggregated net assets disposed of: AFfHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment L ESN e Y 1,016
Deferred tax assets REFIBE E 94
Inventories FE8 1,349
Amounts due from customers for contract work RWEFA#ITIERE 5,517
Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR 8,795
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HuEUW R ~ e RFERFIE 2,459
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBEFABERZCRIEE 28,291
Bank balances and cash IRITHERKRIRE 22,508
Trade payables EREB SRR (2,422)
Other payables and accrued charges EMEARIERTEREA (25,027)
Amount due to the Group R AREEFRE (33,215)
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFPAHNTIERIE (3,976)
5,389
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHBARZER :
Fair value of the equity interest retained in Excel HK  REBEBRBREY N1 EE 5,131
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE (5,389)
(258)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELECREREFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZES MRS EEY (22,508)
—E—RFFR
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group had given
corporate guarantee to a third party and Excel HK in
respect of all monies owed by and/or the obligations
and liabilities of the Excel HK due to a third party under
a service contract to the extent of HK$8,500,000 (2014:
HK$600,000). At the end of reporting period, no provision
for the Group’s obligation under the guarantee contract
has been made as there was no amounts due by Excel
HK to the third party at the end of the reporting period
and the directors considered that it was not probable
that the service obligations by Excel HK would not be
met. The fair value of the guarantee at initial recognition
is immaterial.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MKEABREEREMIAAR
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL EBE®
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
37.1 Categories of financial assets and 371 sREEREEZER
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statement B EARRN KT 2 2 BREE S KA
of financial position relate to the following THEAzERmEENRSRAR
categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities:
2015 2014
—EB-FHEF —EF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#BT FET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEESREE
- Unlisted private equity fund, —JELTRARE
at fair value e WMARBE - =
Financial assets at fair value BARBEABER
through profit or loss JEREE
— Listed equity securities —BEEE 2 L™
held for trading [N - 26,945
Loans and receivables & TR N W3R8
— Trade receivables —RUWEZERR 23,686 49,694
— Other receivables and deposits —HAb GRS 16,764 14,689
- Bank balances and cash —IRITERERE 33,563 86,872
74,013 178,100
Financial liabilities sRBE
Financial liabilities measured B AT 2
at amortised cost ZemaE
— Trade payables —ERB SRR 24,404 32,536
— Other payables and accrued charges — — E i fE {5 Z018
KMIBIREMA 19,480 37,078
— Amounts due to directors —ENEEHE 9,552 5,355
- Borrowings — BB 4,098 3,964
57,534 78,933
T -RFEFHR

131



Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. KREREEREMTIAEAR
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL BE%Z)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
37.2 Foreign currency risk 37.2 SEREE

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. It is the Group's policy for
each operating entity to operate in local currencies
as far as possible to minimise currency risks. The
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arise
from its overseas sales and purchases, which
are primarily denominated in United States Dollar
(“US$"), Renminbi ("RMB"), Singapore Dollar
("S$"”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY"). These are not
the functional currencies of certain Group entities
to which these transactions relate.

The following table details of the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
foreign currency risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency

1N R\ e i P EE 2% S ) 1 48 20 &
TRAZARBEXRERKRRESRE
MRS 2R - AREHEEL
EERRRZERANEHEEL
& BRI RERESMNERR - A&
ARz SMNERBIRE HEEEIAE
T(ExT]D - ARBETARE ] -
oo (Mg 1) R BE(T B
B DEHEZ/BINEE MRE - itF
EEWFFRUERFGZETEE
ERZEEY -

TRFHFMNERARANEEE AR
AEBNEERUINZERFEZ
EEREERABEMAR ZSMNER

RS

other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate are shown below:

Us$ RVMB S$ JPY
En  AR® HmpT =!
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT THExT FTHExT TFHEx

At 31 December 2015 N-—ZE-—HFE+=-A=+—H

Bank balances and cash RITEHEIRE 811 115 = 268
Borrowings BE - (4,098) - -
Overall net exposure 2 H R bR 811 (3,983) - 268

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=—F=+—H
Financial assets at fair value R BESABZE

through profit or loss L EMEE 17,180 - - -
Trade receivables TEWE SRR 1,254 - - -
Bank balances and cash RITFRNIRE 8,812 13,575 148 421
Borrowings == - (3,964 - -
Overall net exposure 2 EE R FEE 27,246 9,611 148 421

AEEBTEAZARYE - #INETT
;ABZKBTZE -

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB, S$ and JPY.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. HEEREEREMIAAR
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL BEZ)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 37.2 SMNERBR(E)

The HK$ is pegged to US$ and the amounts
denominated in US$ is considered to be
insignificant.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’s loss after income tax for the year and
equity in regards to an appreciation/depreciation
in HK$ against RMB, S$ and JPY. These rates are
the rates used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

A T MG - AT A
B2 SELTEA -

TRHB\FANKEIRAEHIEL
EIEEESEETAARE - #0
SR ABEAE REZHEE
ZEEXTIARATIEERABR
WIMNERBFRAZER - HER
EHERAEE B 2 &M -

Increase/
(Decrease) Effect on Effect on
in foreign loss after component
exchange rate income tax of equity
EREH A HMBRFERE IR REER 4
(T F&) BREzZEE b2
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FHET
2015 —E-0F
RMB AR 3% 119 (119)
(3%) (119) 119
JPY HIE 5% (13) 13
(5%) 13 (13)
2014 —E-—OE
RMB AR 3% (288) 288
(3%) 288 (288)
S$ FANE T 3% (4) 4
(3%) 4 (4)
JPY HIE 5% (21) 21
(5%) 21 (21)
Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during F Rz INE R ERREINR B
the year depending on the volume of overseas £ o Am - Bl DR AR R
transactions. Nevertheless, the analysis above is REBAAS 2 INERBR -
considered to be representative of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk.
T -RFFR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37.3

37.4

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances, amount due from
an investee company and borrowings. Borrowings
bearing fixed rates through the contractual terms
of the borrowings. The Group’s amount due from
an investee company is also stated at fixed rate
through the contractual terms. The exposure to
interest rates for the Group’'s short-term bank
deposits is considered immaterial. The Group
therefore does not have significant exposure to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
nor in comparative periods.

Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values of equity securities will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than changes
in interest rates and foreign exchange rates).

At 31 December 2014, the Group is exposed
to change in market prices in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its market price risk arising
from these investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the decision made by the board
of directors.

During the year, the Group’'s investments in listed
equity securities as at 31 December 2014 had
been disposed of through deemed disposal of
the Group's interest in Excel HK as detailed in
note 35. Accordingly, the Group is not exposed to
significant other price risk at 31 December 2015.
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37.3

37.4

BEEREEREMIAEQNR
B&

485 )

AR E R

MERBESRIAEZAABESL
REmERTIHH REE M H R
BRR - AREHONXEARER
KERITER - BRERERFKEA
REE - FEEBIIVEREZAH
FERSAEEMNE - AEEREER
B RRIFRIATNE BT A KGRI
BEMEARR - NREEEBRTHE
KA Z MEREBRIERNEKX - )
ARER B 2 R 3 e A P 3
EAMERER

HtE% R R

HMERERRERAB S AR BE
PR 745 B Y Pk LM M
BN MEBEMZ AR -

R-ZE—WE+=-A=+—H K
EEARSERDBRAZARERA
FFAERRCEMEEZ ETRAR
BHLE TS ERETRAR - &
ERERGEREMEE CTISZER
R - AEBERKEEAEDH - HE
ZABMAATIHESSELATE -

FR - AEBR=-ZT—NF+=-A
T —HRLEWRAFEHZIZED
BRRERELAEBRELSEE L
BELE  FBHE2HWE35-
Hit - KREBR-_ZE—HFE+=A
=+ —HUTEATEAHMELR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37.4 Other price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price

37.

EBE@)

37.4 HiEERRE)

THBRENN - RER-F—N
FH+ZRA=+—BZBRAERERR

BEEREEREMIAEAR

risks as at 31 December 2014. METE °
2014
—E-mE
Increase/
(Decrease)
in price of Effect on Effect on
listed equity loss after component
securities income tax of equity
THRAEFERZ
BI&FHIE, HIBRFTSHI% A
(Bk1E) BEzZE Bin &
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% T T
Market price of the listed _FHRAZE S
equity securities MiHEE 10% (2,695) 2,695
(10%) 2,695 (2,695)

The assumed volatility of listed equity securities
represent management’'s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in these security
prices over the next twelve month period.

T -RFEFIR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BIREREERSMIANA
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL BEE @)
|NSTRUMENTS (Continued)
37.5 Credit risk 375 EERRE

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on recognised financial assets is limited to the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
as summarised in note 37.1.

In respect of credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables, management closely monitors
all outstanding debts and reviews the collectability
of the receivables periodically. As at the end of
the reporting period, the credit risk is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks and multi-national companies with high
quality external credit ratings.

The Group adopts conservative investment
strategies with management monitoring the
investment portfolio. Usually investments are
in liquid securities quoted on recognised stock
exchanges, except where entered into for long
term strategic purposes. See note 22 to these
consolidated financial statements for further
details of the Group’s exposures to credit risk on
trade receivables.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BERAMEEREMIAAR
(ERETE D)

37.6 Liquidity risk 37.6 REMHEREK
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will mBMRB S MAEERESBER
not be able to meet its obligations associated with NIReKEMEMEESNEITH
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering EsmaEHEEsETzRR - A&
cash or another financial asset. The Group is BsENENESERRBEE T
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement AR HIR®REEEmMAS RENE
of trade payables and its financing obligations, and Bk - REEZ BIZERERRH
also in respect of its cash flow management. The BEREEESNBEEKE - Um
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate BHEHRRERSESTK °
level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
The Group's prudent policy is to regularly monitor REEB 7R THEASTHEREHR
its current and expected liquidity requirements, AIRTERZ REBESER MR
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of EHMBEEIMNREGRRSEED Y
cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity HE UnEEESRHESLS
requirements in the short term. Sk oo
When the creditor has a choice of when the HFEEATEERBSNAGZER -
liability is settled, the liability is included on the BEEANEEMERERER &
basis of the earliest date on when the Group FHERE - A& HERE -
can be required to pay. Where the settlement BN R ERNEBRBEN
of the liability is in instalments, each instalment ZEREHE - NZZE—FHFR-Z
is allocated to the earliest period in which the —mNE+-—A=+—H £Xx&EES
Group is committed to pay. At 31 December BBENSNINEERE A —F N
2015 and 2014, the Group's contractual maturity RENR  AEESRMEBEMNETDE
for its financial liabilities are within one year HMEAAXRMIBNIRESRENSE
or on demand. The carrying amounts of its
financial liabilities approximate their contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

37.7 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 377 BFEAABEARZERMEE

carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at
31 December 2014 and 2015.

A
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

38. ALQFMBMRAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARETIT
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NIENGIPA 3 = -
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TEf FRIE 311 299
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A R IE 133,826 133,794
Bank balances and cash RITEAR LIRS 85 242
134,222 134,335
Current liabilities HREBaE
Other payables and accrued charges HibENRELTEIRE R 1,264 405
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERTB B R AR TE 64,753 64,753
Amounts due to directors FENES A 9,652 5,355
Net current assets RBEEFE 75,569 70,513
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABERS 58,653 63,822
Net assets EEFE 58,653 63,822
EQUITY e
Share capital A% A 118,846 118,846
Reserves (note) it (MsE) (60,193) (55,024)
Total equity R 58,653 63,822
Li Xia B Chong Yu Ping HEF
Director o Director =
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

39.

POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

38. AR THMBARREKE)

Note: BT
The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: ARB 2 EBEEBET -
Share Accumulated
Premium Losses Total
B4R E ZiEER wEm
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NF—A—H 220,438 (259,421) (38,983)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEBEEE
expense for the year FX 4% - (16,041) (16,041)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—F
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—HK
—E-R%—A—H 220,438 (275,462) (55,024)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREER
expense for the year s 4858 = (5,169) (5,169)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HF
t=A=+—-H 220,438 (280,631) (60,193)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions.

T -RFEFHR
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39.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+-_A=+—HIFtFZ

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure using gearing ratio which is net
debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as debt, which comprises short-term
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. During 2015, the Group’s
strategy remains unchanged from 2014, which is to
maintain the gearing ratio of not more than 20% in order
to support its business. The gearing ratio at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were not presented as the Group has no
net debt as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

39.

EXEE#®)

REZEFIER - NEBEIRFABERARE
BEAEEEL R N EEHEE R
B AREKFAETERBA(RIER
HEENREBESRBSESEY - RiER
BHRGEAMBIRARFPARCARBIES
ANFEAE IR AE R FEVE R i 2B - =T — R
FHIME - ASBEZRBEE T —OF
R AELREFRETER20%/MK
T AT ERERZER  c ARAEERZ
E-RAFA_FT-NF+_A=+—HI
EIFEE  MUE2INR_ZT—RFR=
T—NFEF+-_A=Zt+—HZAEWLEX -

ol

2015 2014

—E—FF —E—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Total borrowings — Borrowings EERE-EE 4,098 3,964
Less: bank balances and cash o BT R RRS (33,563) (86,872)
Net assets FEE (29,465) (82,908)
Total equity & i 4 =E 124,057 163,792

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

140




He AR

Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited
EEKEERAMRLE



	COVER
	GEM
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	BACK COVER


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo false
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 100
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 300
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
>
    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e5c4f5e55663e793a3001901a8fc775355b5090ae4ef653d190014ee553ca901a8fc756e072797f5153d15e03300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc87a25e55986f793a3001901a904e96fb5b5090f54ef650b390014ee553ca57287db2969b7db28def4e0a767c5e03300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for on-screen display, e-mail, and the Internet.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>
>
    /HRV <>
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020d654ba740020d45cc2dc002c0020c804c7900020ba54c77c002c0020c778d130b137c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor weergave op een beeldscherm, e-mail en internet. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing false
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


